Notice of Meeting

Resources and Performance Select
Committee
Date & time
Thursday, 14 April
2022 at 10.00 am

Place
Council Chamber
Woodhatch Place
11 Cockshot Hill
Reigate
Surrey, RH2 8EF

Contact
Kunwar Khan, Scrutiny
Officer
Tel 07988 522219

Chief Executive
Joanna Killian
We’re on Twitter:
@SCCdemocracy

kunwar.khan@surreycc.gov.uk

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in
another format, e.g. large print or braille, or another language please
either email kunwar.khan@surreycc.gov.uk or call 07988 522219.
This meeting will be held in public. If you would like to attend and you
have any special requirements, please contact Kunwar Khan, Scrutiny
Officer on 07988 522219.
Elected Members
Nick Darby (Chairman) (Dittons), Will Forster (Vice-Chairman) (Woking South), David Harmer
(Vice-Chairman) (Waverley Western Villages), Robert Hughes (Shere), Rebecca JenningsEvans (Lightwater, West End and Bisley), Robert King (Egham), Steven McCormick (Epsom
Town and Downs), John Robini (Waverley Borough Council), Tony Samuels (Walton & South
Oatlands), Lesley Steeds (Lingfield), Hazel Watson (Dorking Hills)
and Jeremy Webster (Caterham Hill)
TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Committee is responsible for the following areas:












Finance
Orbis Partnership Functions
HR&OD
IT and Digital
Business Ops
Property
Procurement
Equalities and Diversity
Internal/External Communications
Legal and Democratic Services
Customer Services

Page 1 of 4

AGENDA

1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Purpose of the item:
To receive any apologies for absence and substitutions.
2

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS: 17 SEPTEMBER 2021, 17
DECEMBER 2021 AND 20 JANUARY 2022

Purpose of the item:
To agree the minutes of the previous meetings of the Resources
and Performance Select Committee as a true and accurate record of
proceedings.
3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Purpose of the item:
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the
meeting or as soon as possible thereafter:
I.

Any disclosable pecuniary interests and/or

II.

Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect
of any item(s) of business being considered at this meeting.

NOTES:

4



Members are reminded that they must not participate in any
item where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest.



As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any
interest, of which the Member is aware, that relates to the
Member’s spouse or civil partner (or any person with whom
the Member is living as a spouse or civil partner).



Members with a significant personal interest may participate
in the discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest
could be reasonably regarded as prejudicial.

QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS

Purpose of the item:
To receive any questions or petitions.
NOTES:
1. The deadline for Members’ questions is 12:00pm four
working days before the meeting (8 April 2022).
Page 2 of 4

(Pages 5
- 38)

2. The deadline for public questions is seven days before the
meeting (7 April 2022).
3. The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting,
and no petitions have been received.
5

NOTES OF RESOURCES AND PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
PERFORMANCE MONITORING SESSION

(Pages
39 - 42)

Purpose of the item:
To publish the notes of the Performance Monitoring session
conducted informally on 20 December 2021.
6

SUPPORTED INDEPENDENT LIVING - DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION

(Pages
43 - 52)

Purpose of report:
To inform the Select Committee of the Supported Independent
Living Cabinet Report scheduled for Tuesday 26 April 2022.
N.B. There is a Part 2 version of this report under item 8.
7

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

Purpose of the item:
That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the
following items of business on the grounds that they involve the
likely disclosure of exempt information under the relevant
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.
8

SUPPORTED INDEPENDENT LIVING - DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION

(Pages
53 - 64)

Purpose of the report:
This Part 2 report contains information which is exempt from Access
to Information requirements by virtue of paragraph 3 – Information
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including commercially sensitive information to the bidding
companies).
9

PUBLICITY OF PART 2 ITEMS

Purpose of the item:
To consider whether the item considered under Part 2 of the agenda
should be made available to the Press and public.
10

PEOPLE & CHANGE DEVELOPMENT UPDATE
Page 3 of 4

(Pages

65 - 72)

Purpose of the report:
The report provides an update on key focus areas within People &
Change and gives an overview of the main projects of work that are
in train as part of the next stage of the Workforce of the Future
Strategy that was last presented to Corporate Leadership Team
(CLT) and People, Performance & Development Committee (PPDC)
in September 2021.
11

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME AND RECOMMENDATION
TRACKER

(Pages
73 - 104)

Purpose of the item:
For the Select Committee to review the attached Forward Work
Programme and Recommendation Tracker, making suggestions for
additions or amendments as appropriate.
12

DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Resources and Performance Select
Committee will be held on Wednesday, 13 July 2022 at 10:00am.

Joanna Killian
Chief Executive
Published: Wednesday, 6 April 2022
MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE
Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of
the meeting.
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings with the
Chairman’s consent. Please liaise with the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start
of the meeting so that the Chairman can grant permission and those attending the meeting can
be made aware of any filming taking place.
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to
no interruptions, distractions or interference, or any general disturbance to proceedings. The
Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be switched off in these circumstances.
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions.
Thank you for your co-operation
FIELD_TITLE
Page 4 of 4

Item 2
MINUTES of the meeting of the RESOURCES AND PERFORMANCE
SELECT COMMITTEE held at 10.00 am on 17 September 2021 at Council
Chamber, Woodhatch Place.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its meeting on
Friday, 17 December 2021.
Elected Members:
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

Nick Darby (Chairman)
Will Forster (Vice-Chairman)
David Harmer
Robert Hughes
Rebecca Jennings-Evans
Robert King
Steven McCormick
Rebecca Paul (Vice-Chairman)
John Robini
Tony Samuels
Lesley Steeds
Hazel Watson
Jeremy Webster

(* = present at the meeting)
26/21 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]
None received.
John Robini was absent.
27/21 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS: 18 MARCH 2021 [Item 2]
The minutes were agreed as a true record of the meeting.
28/21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]
None received.
29/21 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS [Item 4]
None received.
30/21 CABINET MEMBER PRIORITIES UPDATE - TIM OLIVER [Item 5]
Witnesses:
Steve Bax, Deputy Cabinet Member to the Leader
Leigh Whitehouse, Executive Director of Resources
Steve Bax deputised for Tim Oliver, the Leader of the Council, for this item, as
the Leader was not available to attend this meeting.
The aspects of the Leader’s portfolio that came under the Select Committee’s
remit were equality, diversity and inclusion, and communications.

Page 5

Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Deputy Cabinet Member to the Leader introduced the report,
mentioning the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) strategy that had
been approved by Cabinet in February 2021. A Trans at Work policy
was being developed by the Human Resources (HR) team, which
included processes to prevent and tackle discrimination in the
workplace. As part of the development of this policy, the Council was
working with Stonewall, an LGBT (lesbian, gay, bisexual and
transgender) rights organisation, and was hoping to become a more
attractive employer to LGBT people.
2. The Deputy Cabinet Member continued to explain that the Council was
looking to improve accessibility for disabled staff and residents,
including making adjustments for disabled staff and changing the
Surrey County Council website to make it more accessible for people
whose first language was not English.
3. The Deputy Cabinet Member outlined the statistics for representation
of groups with protected characteristics within the Council’s workforce,
as follows:
a. The proportion of Black, Asian and minority ethnic (BAME) staff
in the Council was roughly equal to the proportion of BAME
people in the Surrey population as a whole (10% and 9%
respectively), which was in line with the Council’s notion that
the workforce should broadly be representative of the
communities it represented.
b. Despite this, less than 1% of employees in senior management
roles were BAME, and, according to staff surveys, BAME staff
were less likely to have a good experience working for Surrey
than non-BAME staff.
c. The proportion of women in the Council’s workforce exceeded
the proportion of women in the Surrey population as a whole.
d. A high proportion of the Council’s staff were aged 50-59.
Younger employees were likely to have a better experience of
working for the Council, while those over 60 were likely to have
a worse experience.
4. High levels of non-disclosure of protected characteristic information
amongst the Council’s workforce affected the accuracy of data,
representing a challenge for the Council, particularly with regards to
data on disabilities, religion, and sexual orientation. The
communications team was trying to encourage staff to declare
protected characteristics, and the HR team was also exploring data
around recruitment and whether the Council was attracting staff with
protected characteristics.
5. Moving onto communications, the other aspect of the Leader’s
portfolio that came under the Select Committee’s remit, the Deputy
Cabinet Member stated that the communications team consisted of 25
full-time posts, and the budget for the team, excluding staff salaries,
was approximately £250,000.
6. A Member highlighted the statistic that the Deputy Cabinet Member
had given, that only 1% of senior management roles were occupied by

Page 6

BAME staff, saying that this figure stood out for being particularly low.
How would the Council tackle this issue? The Deputy Cabinet Member
replied that there was indeed work to be done on ensuring there was a
higher proportion of BAME staff in senior management roles. It was
important that the HR team looked at the recruitment process to
ascertain why there were not more BAME staff in senior management
roles currently.
7. A Member asked whether there were any particular demographic
groups that the Council struggled to reach or engage. The Deputy
Cabinet Member responded that the Council’s experience of struggling
to reach certain groups had largely come from the Covid-19 vaccine
programme. Certain communities in Surrey, including Black, AfroCaribbean and Muslim communities, were statistically more likely to
show vaccine hesitancy; this was a trend reflected nationwide. Eastern
European people were another community more likely to show vaccine
hesitancy. To tackle vaccine hesitancy for all these groups, social
media was being used in order to encourage vaccine uptake, roving
vaccination vans went to particular community sites, videos were
recorded by community leaders, and posters were translated into
various languages and placed in community hubs.
8. Welcoming the Council’s prioritisation to attract more LGBT staff, a
Member highlighted the fact that Stonewall was an active lobbying
organisation and asked what the best practice was when evaluating
the suitability of partners for the Council. Was Stonewall an
appropriate service provider in light of best practice? The Deputy
Cabinet Member said that the Council’s membership of Stonewall was
not for the purpose of lobbying; rather, membership provided the
Council with tailored support and advice, and access to useful
materials such as webinars. Stonewall’s support supplemented the
expertise within the Council’s HR department. Ultimately, the Council
would devise its own policy; Stonewall would only offer advice. The
Council was balancing competing rights and priorities to ensure that
the needs of one protected characteristic were not prioritised at a
detriment to others.
9. A Member enquired what key changes were expected to arise from
the Trans at Work policy, and whether an impact assessment would
be conducted to identify the implications of the new policy for other
protected characteristic groups. She also requested that the policy be
shared with the Select Committee before it was put into action. The
Deputy Cabinet Member said it was currently too early in the process
to know the key changes that the policy would bring about. However,
the Council would take a pragmatic view to balance competing needs,
and take legal advice before implementation. In line with existing
protocol, an equality impact assessment would be produced. There
was not yet a draft to share with the Select Committee, and the Deputy
Cabinet Member stated that the Select Committee might not able to
sign off the policy, as it was an operational matter for staff. The
executive and the scrutiny team would work together to decide how to
proceed. The Member responded that it was not a case of the Select
Committee wanting to have sign-off of the policy, but rather having
visibility of the policy.

Page 7

10. A Member enquired whether the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller
communities were included within the protected characteristics groups.
The Deputy Cabinet Member confirmed that these communities were
included as a protected characteristic as set out by the act and in the
view of Surrey County Council. The Council was keen to ensure good
relationships with this community.
11. A Member asked how the Council trained and monitored officers
carrying out recruitment interviews to ensure they had EDI awareness
and were adhering to best practice. Interviewers may need to make
adjustments for people with disabilities, for example. The Deputy
Cabinet Member responded that he would seek more information on
this and provide an answer to the Select Committee after the meeting.
He also emphasised that staff disclosure of protected characteristics
was important to ensure that adaptations could be made where
necessary.
12. In relation to the point above, the Executive Director of Resources
added that over the last 18 months, there had been widespread
training for staff, including senior managers, on unconscious bias,
which was important to tackle ignorance or a lack of empathy when it
came to minority groups. The Council also had several staff networks
(for example, a Deaf Staff Network and an LGBTQ+ Staff Network),
each of which had a corporate leadership team sponsor and a Cabinet
Member sponsor. These networks could help raise awareness of
protected characteristics groups.
13. A Member questioned whether the communications department’s
budget was sufficient to provide a good service to residents. The
Deputy Cabinet Member highlighted new forms of communication
(such social media) which were significantly cheaper than older
methods (such as leaflets and posters) and also had a much more
effective reach that could be targeted using free analytics technology.
The Member stated that some residents were digitally excluded and
did not have access to social media or a mobile phone. The Deputy
Cabinet Member replied that digital methods could reach the majority
of people, and that there were also other methods the Council used in
order to reach people who did not use digital technology.
14. The Select Committee agreed that, since HR had been discussed
numerous times during this item, it would be useful if the Director of
HR attended the Select Committee in future to present an item on the
HR service.
15. A Member requested more information on the Member task group on
councillor diversity, as mentioned in the report. The Deputy Cabinet
Member stated that the Member Development Steering Group was
due to consider the scope of the councillor diversity and inclusion
review at their meeting in November 2021. Membership of the task
group was not yet decided. Analysis of councillor diversity had been
conducted after the May 2021 election; this analysis could be shared
with the Select Committee after the meeting. Members agreed to look
at potentially reviewing the topic of councillor diversity, pending
discussions at the Member Development Steering Group.

Page 8

16. A Member queried how the Council’s EDI policy fed into its HR policies
to ensure equality, diversity and inclusion were reflected in pay
promotion and flexible working policies, for example. The Executive
Director replied that the Director of HR and OD had been a member of
the EDI steering group within the Council, so she was a direct link
between HR and EDI policies. At the moment, the Council was also
taking views on workforce strategy from a range of sources. There
was a strong link between EDI and HR.
17. A Member asked how the Council was addressing resource concerns
and how it was taking this into account for the future. The Executive
Director agreed to provide a response on this after the meeting.
18. A Member expressed his satisfaction with the daily update briefings
and weekly parliamentary briefings that all Surrey Members received.
However, some of these briefings contained articles with a paywall
(meaning access to these articles was restricted to users who had
paid to subscribe to the site or media publication). What could be done
to ensure no councillors were left behind, without councillors having to
take out their own subscriptions? The Deputy Cabinet Member
suggested that Members could buy a physical copy of the newspaper
or publication in which the article in question was published;
newspapers were also often available for free in local libraries. Bulk
buying subscriptions for Members was not a good value use of the
Council’s budget. The Member responded that this was a problem as it
was important that all Members were kept up-to-date. Having a
subscription for each Member was probably not necessary, but nor
should Members have to buy a physical copy of the publication. The
Council should look at how to keep Members up-to-date in a costeffective way. The Deputy Cabinet Member clarified that it was not the
case that some Members had access to paywall articles and others
did not; if any Members had access to paywall articles, this would only
be because they had personally taken out their own subscription. He
agreed to follow this issue up after the meeting and see if more could
be done, such as a digest or summary of articles.
19. A Member enquired what the Council was doing to tackle digital
exclusion. Some digitally excluded people were particularly vulnerable
and in need of information or advice. The Deputy Cabinet Member
stated that while the bulk of the Council’s communications were
conducted online, some publications were still sent out in physical
form. Perhaps certain communications could be sent out with the
physical copies of council tax bills that all district and borough councils
in Surrey (apart from Elmbridge) sent out to residents every April, in
order to reach residents who did not use digital pathways. Surrey
County Council was also open to suggestions from Members on how
best to tackle digital inclusion. The Member asked whether the Council
could target certain communities that intelligence suggested were less
likely to be online. The Deputy Cabinet Member said that this was
potentially possible; data from the census could also be used.
However, very precise data would be required in order to effectively
target digitally excluded residents without wasting resources, and it
could be difficult to find data specific enough to do this.

Page 9

20. A Member suggested that the Council could use existing data on
whether a resident had opted to have their council tax bill delivered
digitally or in paper form in order to identify whether they were likely to
be receptive to digital communications or not. Perhaps a more
coordinated approach on digital exclusion was needed. It was also
important to ensure that communications were available in a variety of
languages to ensure that residents who had a first language other than
English were not excluded.
21. A Member stated that it could be useful for Members to be provided
with a set of standard, prepared emails on common topics, such as
programmes being promoted by the communications department, to
ensure consistency in Members’ communications with residents. The
Deputy Cabinet Member agreed that brand consistency was helpful,
while also acknowledging and respecting that all 81 Members had
their own individual ways of communicating. One suggestion that had
been made to the communications team was to put together an A-Z
directory on a range of common issues, such as potholes. This could
be a useful resource for Members and would encourage consistency.
There was also lots of information on the Member portal, to which all
Members had access through Microsoft Teams. He suggested that
Members contact officers for specific services if they were struggling to
access information on any particular topic.
22. A Member noted that the report mentioned four high-level strategic
communications initiatives (these were: An Unstoppable Force, Make
it Happen, One Surrey Story, and What does SCC do for you?). What
were the financial costs and costs in officer time in conducting those
initiatives? The Deputy Cabinet Member responded that there were no
individual budgets for each scheme; rather, there was the central
£250,000 budget to cover the whole of communications, once staffing
costs had been taken out.
23. A Member expressed concern that the councillors’ communications
briefings tended to focus on good news and Council-controlled stories;
however, it was useful for Members to see the bad news as well as the
good news stories in order to be aware of these. The Local
Democracy Reporter for Surrey regularly published stories that it might
be useful for Members to see.
Recommendations:
The Select Committee recommends that:
1. Cabinet is to consider how Surrey County Council engages with
organisations that undertake political lobbying and/or are involved in
matters that some might consider controversial;
2. Surrey County Council should ensure that any impact on other
protected characteristic groups are identified and carefully taken into
consideration before finalising the Trans at Work policy;
3. The Trans at Work policy is to be presented to the Select Committee
prior to being finalised;
4. More focus is to be given to the range of topics covered in internal
communications in the daily media email update to Members. In
particular, all references articles in the daily media briefing to be made
accessible to all Members;

Page 10

5. A report on digital exclusion is to be provided to this Select Committee
at a future meeting.
Actions/further information to be provided:
1. Deputy Cabinet Member to the Leader to provide more information on
how the Council trains and monitors officers carrying out recruitment
interviews to ensure they have EDI awareness and adhere to best
practice;
2. Democratic Services officers to share councillor diversity analysis
conducted after the May 2021 election with the Select Committee;
3. Executive Director of Resources to provide information on how the
Council is addressing resource concerns and how it is taking this into
account for the future.
31/21 CABINET MEMBER PRIORITIES UPDATE - BECKY RUSH [Item 6]
Witnesses:
Becky Rush, Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources and Deputy Leader
Leigh Whitehouse, Executive Director of Resources
The aspects of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources’ portfolio that
came under the Select Committee’s remit were finance, the Orbis partnership,
HR&OD, IT and digital, procurement, and legal and democratic services.
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. A Member asked what the main challenges were regarding the setting
of the 2022/23 budget, and how confident the Cabinet Member for
Finance and Resources was that these challenges could be
addressed. The Cabinet Member replied that at the moment the
Council was in the early stages of putting together the first view of the
budget, which currently estimated a budget gap of £47.1m; however,
this figure was prone to change on a daily basis. This figure
represented part of the £200m gap in the Council’s finances forecast
over the medium term in the Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).
2. The Cabinet Member continued to explain that the main areas of
challenge were adult social care (ASC) and children’s social care, in
particular, special educational needs and disabilities (SEND).
Regarding ASC, there had been an increase in the number of people
requiring care following the Covid-19 pandemic, as well as an increase
in provider costs, and therefore ASC generated 60% of the budget gap
for the 2022/23 financial year. Regarding children’s social care, there
was significant pent-up demand for these services following the
pandemic, including an increase in the number of looked after children
and looked after children assessments, leading to an increase in the
cost of placements and an increase in the number of external
placements. The Council was looking to address the overspend in the
field of SEND, which represented 22% of the 2022/23 budget gap.
Directorates were currently working to address budget pressures by
identifying efficiencies, and had expressed confidence that they would
be able to address the gap. The Council would be using a new ‘twintrack’ approach, working across directorates, to tackle the £200m gap.
3. The Executive Director of Resources added that another challenge
was that the government would usually give local councils a multi-year

Page 11

indication of resources, but for the last few years, including the current
year, indications from government had been shorter term and had not
been released until December (soon before the final setting of the
budget). The Council was expecting a spending review to be released
at the end of October, but in the meantime the Council was basing its
budgeting on its best estimate of the results of the government’s
spending review; it was expected that the review would result in
negative changes to the Council’s funding from central government.
4. A Member noted that the government had recently announced an
increase in national insurance contributions, the money raised from
which would be used to fund the NHS and social care systems
nationally, and asked for witnesses’ thoughts on this and how this
would affect the Council’s budget generally. The Executive Director
responded that the potential impacts were that there would be an
increased cost of national insurance for the Council as an employer
(this could also have an impact on the supply chain as providers that
were also employers would have to account for this increased cost)
and, conversely, increased funding for the Council as a provider of
ASC. There was not yet enough clarity to know the exact impact on
the Council and the wider supply chain. The Member highlighted that
this was a potentially serious issue.
5. A Member enquired how Surrey County Council would be consulting
effectively with district and borough councils on the effects of the
increase in national insurance and the ASC precept increase.
According to the Member, there had been concerns about a lack of
consultation with district and borough councils in the past. The
Executive Director, who was also the section 151 officer for Surrey
County Council, explained that he would meet with the section 151
officers for Surrey district and borough councils. Dialogue and
consultation with district and borough councils would continue
throughout the year.
6. A Member enquired whether the Orbis partnership provided good
value for money for the Council and residents. The Executive Director
of Resources explained that the Orbis partnership, between Surrey
County Council, East Sussex County Council and Brighton and Hove
City Council, had delivered significant savings since its inception. He
emphasised the benefits that came from sharing resources and
expertise. Since 2018, the Orbis partnership had been refined; Surrey
County Council had drawn its finance, HR and land and property
services back in-house, showing that Surrey County Council would
adapt the its role in the partnership based on what represented good
value for residents.
7. A Member asked what plans there were for consultation with residents
on the 2022/23 budget. The Cabinet Member stated that the Select
Committee’s comments on budget consultation had been taken on
board and the Council planned to run a more in-depth programme of
resident budget engagement this year than it had done in the last few
years. The Cabinet Member expressed the hope that the feedback
gained in this round of budget consultation could be applicable for a
number of years to come. The consultation programme on the 2022/23
budget would begin in September or October 2021 and would include

Page 12

online workshops and telephone surveys. A sample group of
approximately 1,100 residents would be consulted, who would be
demographically representative of the wider Surrey population. The
aims of the consultation were to raise awareness among residents on
the context of the Council’s budget, explore various topics, such as
transformation programmes, understand residents’ spending
preferences, and test residents’ spontaneous attitudes towards service
changes. The resident consultation would be just one piece of
information amongst many that would be factored into the formulation
of the budget; others included benchmarking and service views.
8. A Member requested an update on the Digital Business and Insights
(DB&I) programme, in particular, the implementation of a new
enterprise resource planning (ERP) system. The Executive Director
replied that significant progress had been made since the last
discussion on the DB&I programme at the Select Committee. Phase
one, involving the procurement system, was now live. The next
milestone was for the finance, HR and payroll elements to go live; this
was planned for December 2021. User acceptance testing was
currently being conducted, and the status of the programme would be
reviewed following this testing.
9. Another Member emphasised that the implementation of the new ERP
system carried risk and asked whether the programme was still on
track. The Cabinet Member responded that, as September 2021 was a
critical month in the programme, the Council would have to wait until
the end of September to be able to say whether it was on track;
however, when this information was available, the Select Committee
could be informed. A decision would be made in September 2021 on
whether to withdraw from the current ERP subscription before the end
of 2021 or not.
10. The Select Committee discussed the Council’s risk register, overall
responsibility for which sat with the Audit and Governance Committee.
The Select Committee agreed that if its Members wanted more
information about the risk register and how this related to the budget,
they could informally approach the Chairman of the Audit and
Governance Committee for a discussion.
Recommendations:
1. The Select Committee recommends that Surrey County Council
actively involves residents in the budget setting process and carefully
takes into account relevant feedback, observing the ethos of
participatory budgeting.
32/21 CABINET MEMBER PRIORITIES UPDATE - MARK NUTI [Item 7]
Witnesses:
Mark Nuti, Cabinet Member for Communities
Marie Snelling, Executive Director of Customer and Communities
The aspect of the Cabinet Member for Communities’ portfolio that came under
the Select Committee’s remit was customer services.
Key points raised during the discussion:

Page 13

1. The Cabinet Member praised the work of the customer services team
throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, during which they had acted as
the first point of contact for residents.
2. A Member asked what the key issues were in customer services at the
moment. The Cabinet Member responded that a key priority was to
keep response times as short as possible. Pre-pandemic, the average
response time was 20 seconds, but this had not been possible in the
last few months due to the pressures of Covid-19 and, more recently,
the pressures of school admissions. The service was trying to recruit
more staff to tackle this issue. At the height of the pandemic, the
average response time increased to 20 minutes, which had now been
reduced to four minutes. However, the 20-second response time was
still the target, and the Cabinet Member expressed the belief that this
would be reached once new staff were in-post by October 2021.
3. The Cabinet Member stated that the service’s aim was to ensure
customers always received the best quality interaction at the point of
contact, and in order to achieve this the service was being
streamlined, one aspect of which was making online systems available
wherever possible. The majority of queries and problems reported
could be addressed quickly through automated online systems, which
were now in place for a number of services.
4. The Cabinet Member continued to explain that the Dakota building,
from which the customer services team was now based, was a bright,
airy and calm workspace. Approximately 40% of the team were
working from the office and 60% were choosing to work from home;
internal surveys had suggested that staff were happy with this working
arrangement. The service had not suffered from the fact that more
staff were working at home; if anything, the service had improved
recently.
5. The Executive Director of Customer and Communities praised the
attitude and efficiency of staff throughout the pandemic. The team had
recently been nominated for two national awards. In fact, the fourminute response time was good when compared to some other local
authorities. Also, it could be advantageous at times for teams to work
together in person, particularly when handling complex or potentially
traumatic calls, as support from colleagues was important in these
situations.
6. The Executive Director welcomed Members to come to visit the
customer services offices in the Dakota building in person.
7. A Member noted that only 40% of the customer services team were
currently working in the office, even though, as the Executive Director
had just highlighted, it could be advantageous for the team to work in
the office together. How did the service balance that? The Executive
Director responded that sub-teams were coordinated to try to ensure
that who was in the office was based on need within the service. The
service aspired to increase the number of staff in the office, but
numbers were currently restricted due to social distancing. Whether
staff worked from home or in the office also depended on the type of
work they did. The service would continue to work to ensure that

Page 14

business need came first but that working styles also worked well for
staff.
8. A Member asked whether it would be possible for data to be collected
on enquiries raised by customers relating to specific divisions, and for
high-level information on this to be passed onto the divisional Member,
allowing members to stay up to date on the pertinent issues within
their division. The Cabinet Member replied that the service was
looking at putting together a list of frequently asked questions on the
top 20 or so types of enquiries. A flow chart was also being produced
to show the pathways for enquiries and where delays could arise. The
Cabinet Member hoped that this would be provided to Members within
the next few weeks.
9. A Member asked what level of traffic the Council experienced on the
Esendex service it used to send out text messages. The Executive
Director agreed to provide this information after the meeting.
10. A Member enquired how the Council was communicating to elderly or
vulnerable residents that BT would be switching off its landline service
in 2025. Some residents may not be aware of this, and it may be the
only method they used for contacting the Council. The Cabinet
Member agreed that it was important to think ahead so that residents
were not left stranded without a landline. There were many different
ways to contact the Council available. The Executive Director
expressed the opinion that the Council would probably always have
some form of telephony presence. The need to continue to provide
choice had to be balanced with the cost and administration of these
contact pathways. The Council’s strategy, informed in part by previous
discussions with the Resources and Performance Select Committee,
was therefore to utilise new technologies and to support residents to
be able to use them. The Council recognised that some more
traditional methods may be needed, particularly for more vulnerable
residents, but that newer technologies should be introduced in line
with their use in wider society. For example, a chatbot had been
brought in, through which residents could contact the Council, aligned
with the use of chatbots on banks’ and other services’ websites.
11. Regarding the Council’s chatbot, a Member agreed that these had an
important place but that sometimes they did not work well. The
Cabinet Member stated that the chatbot system had worked well since
it was started, with a satisfaction rate of approximately 95%. The
chatbot was suitable for residents with simpler questions that could be
answered quickly, and having it freed up staff time. The Executive
Director added that 40% of the traffic to the chatbot so far was outside
of business hours, showing its particular use when other contact
methods would not be available. The chatbot was not intended to fully
replace more traditional methods of contact, but rather to enable
customer services to reduce a large proportion of their contact in order
to focus on those who had complex queries and needed telephonebased interaction the most.
12. A Member asked what the customer services budget was and what
the £200,000 in efficiencies planned actually meant. What progress
had been made so far on achieving efficiencies? The Executive

Page 15

Director explained that the customer services budget was £2.7m for
2021/22 and the service was on track to deliver £200,000 of
efficiencies. Most of the budget was spent on staff. It was important to
rationalise the efficiencies made through the use of chatbots by slightly
reducing the number of staff. The Member remarked that witnesses
had mentioned that new staff would be joining the service in October.
How did this impact the efficiencies? The Executive Director
responded that the new staff joining in October were funded by NHS
England through Test and Trace, so this did not have a negative
impact on the customer services budget or efficiencies.
Recommendations:
The Select Committee recommends that:
1. Consideration be given to the customer services team providing
relevant information and data, based on the calls received by them, to
the respective elected representatives about their wards/divisions;
2. Careful consideration be given to ensuring that the roll-out of chatbots
does not result in a negative impact on digitally excluded and elderly
residents;
3. An opportunity to visit the customer services contact centre be offered
to Members by the service at an appropriate time.
Actions/further information to be provided:
1. Executive Director of Customer and Communities to provide
information on the level of traffic on the Esendex system.
33/21 BUDGET TASK GROUP MEMBERSHIP [Item 8]
The new membership of the Budget Task Group was agreed.
34/21 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
[Item 9]
The Select Committee noted the recommendation tracker and forward work
programme.
35/21 DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING [Item 10]
The next meeting of the Resources and Performance Select Committee
would be held on 17 December 2021.

Meeting ended at: 12.41 pm
______________________________________________________________
Chairman

Page 16

MINUTES of the meeting of the RESOURCES AND PERFORMANCE
SELECT COMMITTEE held at 10.00 am on 17 December 2021 at .
Elected Members:
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

Nick Darby (Chairman)
Will Forster (Vice-Chairman)
David Harmer
Robert Hughes
Rebecca Jennings-Evans
Robert King
David Lewis
David Lewis
Steven McCormick
Rebecca Paul (Vice-Chairman)
John Robini
Tony Samuels
Lesley Steeds
Hazel Watson
Jeremy Webster

(* =present at the meeting)
36/21 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]
David Lewis of Camberley attended as a substitute for Rebecca Jennings Evans. David Lewis of Cobham attended as a substitute for Tony Samuels.
37/21 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS: 17 SEPTEMBER 2021 [Item 2]
The minutes of the Resources and Performance Select Committee held on 17
September 2021 were reviewed and there were no comments. Minutes to be
agreed at the next public meeting.
38/21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]
None received.
39/21 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS [Item 4]
None received.
40/21 2022/23 DRAFT BUDGET REPORT AND MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL
STRATEGY TO 2026/27 [Item 5]
Witnesses:
Leigh Whitehouse, Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director Resources
Marie Snelling, Executive Director, Customers and Communities
Anna D’Alessandro, Director, Corporate Finance and Commercial
Rachel Wigley, Director Finance, Insights & Performance
Nicola O’Connor, Strategic Finance Business Partner
Mark Hak-Sanders, Strategic Finance Business Partner

Page 17

Officers introduced a summary of the item and outlined the key aspects of the
report pointing out that all budget assumptions and work undertaken for the
Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) included the Council’s priorities and
community vision for 2030.
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Chairman asked what would be the impact of the proposed
budget reductions or efficiencies on residents and the Council’s
service delivery. Officers said that an entire budget package was being
produced with updated impact assessments to take into account any
changes to service delivery. They added that where the service had
identified equality implications, impact assessments would be drafted
alongside these in addition to being presented to the relevant Select
Committee and Cabinet as part of the future approval process.
2. The Chairman added that it was not only detail that was required but
the impact of changes to services in general. It would be
advantageous to assess the effect on residents in relation to
efficiencies as early as possible. Officers agreed that the considering
the implications of efficiencies were an important part of the design
process.
3. The Chairman asked if all Members could expect a further briefing
following the finance settlement announcement.
Officers confirmed that they would be happy to brief members further
once all budget implications had been worked through.
4. The Chairman asked if the cost in terms of the National Insurance
increase was known. Officers said that the total cost to Surrey County
Council before any other implications was £2.5m.
5. A Member asked how items would be selected in relation to the Twin
Track budget setting process given that it would be likely that their
remits would cross Select Committees. Officers said that they were
mindful of the need to present items to the Budget Task Group in
addition to more than one Select Committee.
6. A Member asked what assumptions had been built in in terms of
staffing cost and any increases. Officers said that the draft budget
assumed a 2% inflationary pay rise across each year of the MediumTerm Financial Strategy but discussions were ongoing and needed to
reflect any changes in the final budget.
7. A Member enquired how the recruitment of professional staff,
particularly in the two social care areas could be improved. Officers
said that work regarding pay and rewards had been undertaken and
that a three-year programme was in consideration. The recruitment of
social care staff and those in children’s services were at the forefront
of this work as these areas were reliant on agency staff currently.
8. A Member asked how would further increases to the Council Tax be
presented to taxpayers already concerned about their personal
finances. Officers agreed that there was a national cost of living crisis
and, unfortunately, Surrey residents would feel these pressures too.

Page 18

Council Tax was seen by the Government as a part of the solution to
the pressures on Adult Social Care.
9. A Member asked how the Council could be confident that budget
consultation responses from residents were truly representative.
Officers explained that population data had been used as a
comparator ensuring a rigorous and robust process that was
statistically representative of the population. A Member suggested that
the last date for responses of 28 December might not be a suitable
time to motivate residents to respond due to Christmas. Officers
agreed to take this feedback on board.
10. A Member asked what was being done to join services and boroughs
and districts offering different council tax support to residents. Officers
said that this had been considered in detail during the last 18 months
and that the aim was to share budget information widely going forward
but there were limitations due to the nature of the two-tier system.
Officers added that the County’s ambitions in terms of the green
agenda proactively sought to work and succeed in working
collaboratively.
11. A Member asked why more money was being put into reserves whilst
at the same time increasing borrowing, and could the Council borrow
less and not increase reserves instead. Officers said the Council didn’t
externally borrow until there was a need to do so. The Council’s
reserves were used to minimise the amount borrowed, so in terms of
interest costs every pound in reserve would offset interest costs until
that money was required to fund the capital programme. Although the
numbers in reserve seem significant, it would not be beneficial to
reduce them and increase the risk profile of the Council’s finances
over the medium-term.
12. A Member asked if earmarked specific reserves that remained
unspent were actually required as reserves for those purposes while
remain unused. Officers said that the level of reserves held were
reviewed annually as part of the budget report and that the Section
151 officer had to be satisfied that they were at a prudent level. In
previous years, the Council had set itself on a course that would see
reserves depleted to the point where it wouldn’t be sustainable. With
this in mind, the current level of reserves were proportionate to the
level of risks that the authority faced. By comparison to the
recommendations of external auditors, the County had reasonable but
not excessive level of reserves.
13. A Member asked what advice had been given on the amount of
contingency that should be held back. Officers said that there was no
external advice specifically regarding contingencies.
14. A Member asked what percentage level of reserves did Surrey have.
Officers confirmed that approximately 15% of the net revenue budget
was held in reserve. This amount excluded reserves for very specific
purposes, which would effectively be technical reserves.
15. A Member noted the IT overspend of £3m relating to delayed ‘go-live’
of the MySurrey ERP implementation and asked if it had been

Page 19

included on the budget and if so where. Officers explained that
Cabinet would be presented with a paper later this month on the cost
of the delay to the My Surrey system implementation. That impact had
been felt in both the capital and the revenue budget. Some of the
impact occurred in the current financial year and would be factored in
the budget monitoring report for the current financial year. Where the
impact falls in 22/23 it was not currently factored into the draft budget
being scrutinized today, but would be reflected in the final budget
proposals, subject to any comments or changes arising from the
upcoming Cabinet discussion.
16. A Member asked if the Council had completed an assessment of other
similar council’s corporate costs to undertake an effective comparison
as it would be useful to be able to understand how our costs compare
to other similar councils. Officers said the subject of benchmarking
was an important one and while there was a lot of work relating to
costs of frontline services, it was a complex area due to a lack of
availability of comparable data. It was difficult to access the costs of
other local authorities and there was added complexity as different
structures were involved. However, work was being undertaken to
build local networks and have useful discussions to enable more focus
on this. A Member wondered if a consultancy company specialising in
benchmarking could be tasked for this purpose. Officers said that this
wasn’t currently under consideration and benchmarking was being
looked at within current resources however it was something to think
about going forward.
17. A Member wondered if borrowing was assigned to relevant
departments instead of centrally would more effort be made to reduce
the cost. Officers said that this was in the early stages of
consideration. The first stage this year had been to advise services of
the costs of borrowing and it was being decided whether to take it to
the next stage.
18. A Member asked what the reasons for non-delivery of a few
efficiencies were and was there a similar risk within the current budget
particularly when one looked at red rated savings with higher risks in
the draft budget. Officers said that the forecast for 2021/22 was that
£4.1m of efficiencies were deemed to be undeliverable at this point,
with approximately half of that being in Adult Social Care. The impact
of COVID was a theme across the non-delivery in 2021/22 and it
would continue to be an underlying theme in 2022/23. Officers added
that the budget had been set with assumptions on several factors,
COVID-19 being one of them.
19. A Member asked what the Surrey County Council was doing to ensure
project controls and encouraging joined up working as this was an
area where money could be saved. Officers said it had been
recognised that one of the Council’s challenges was to ensure
effective working across services and there had been little progress to
date. The aim was for the Twin Track approach to help deliver this
joined up working more effectively
20. The Vice-Chairman asked if the budget consultation could be held
earlier in the budget setting process so that concepts and results could

Page 20

be considered in good time. Officers said this could be considered if
appropriate but that the purpose of the information was to be
informative rather than precise and specific and that there was a
balance to be struck in providing information that was broad and
engaging to gain a full understanding of all complexities.
The Chairman thanked Members for their enquiries and officers for their
presentations and responses.
Recommendations:
In appreciating the work undertaken to prepare the draft budget 2022-23 and
Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) to 2026/27, the Resources and
Performance Select Committee recommends that:
1. As a matter of agreed budget setting process every year, following the
details of the Local Government Finance Settlement usually in midDecember, the Section 151 Officer provide a written briefing note to all
Members with details of any impact on the Surrey County Council
finances, service delivery and effect on its residents.
2. The Cabinet is requested to ensure that a comprehensive, truly
representative and early budget consultation with residents and key
stakeholders should form an integral part of the Council’s budget
setting process each year with findings communicated to all Members
and made available to Select Committees with draft budget papers.
The initial budget consultation process should conclude first before a
draft budget is presented to the Council’s Select Committees. The
deadline for the current call for evidence be extended from 28
December 2021 to allow residents and stakeholders more time to
comment and engage after the festive and the New Year period.
3. From the Council’s borrowing cost point of view, the Cabinet should
carefully examine to ensure that the effect of borrowing result in a real
return, particularly any commercial borrowing ought to cover return on
its investment.
4. The Cabinet to ensure that an assessment is undertaken of all
Surrey's Borough and District Council's Local Council Tax Support to
ensure any increase in Surrey County Council’s share of Council Tax
is affordable to all residents.
5. To further support collaborative working, to avoid any silos and to
ensure proper oversight and effective budget scrutiny next year, the
Cabinet is requested to ensure that the Resources and Performance
Select Committee and its Budget Task Group (with all Select
Committee representation) will be provided with:
a. Regular in-year up-to-date finance monitoring updates throughout
the year – particularly when there are significant and material changes
– in order to be assured that assumptions made and expectations
derived from the budget 2022-23 and MTFS 2026-27 (where relevant)
will be met in practice;

Page 21

b. Early communication and understanding of 2023/24 draft budget
with high-level assessment of effect on residents;
c. Meaningful details about the budget efficiencies with overarching
Budget Impact Assessments (including any impact on service delivery,
residents, corporate and organisational priorities, Equality Diversity &
Inclusion (EDI) and staffing etc.)be provided to Select Committees and
the Budget Task Group where appropriate before the draft budget is
formally presented to Select Committees. This should happen earlier
than November to ensure members have sufficient time to understand,
make further enquiries and add real value to the scrutiny process;
d. Commentary and comparison of corporate costs of the Council with
similar authorities;
41/21 PROPERTY PROGRAMME UPDATE (FACILITIES MANAGEMENTFORWARD MAINTENANCE, SURPLUS ASSETS AND DISPOSALS
WORKSTREAM) [Item 6]
Witnesses:
Natalie Bramhall, Cabinet Member for Property and Waste
Leigh Whitehouse, Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director,
Resources
Simon Crowther, Director, Land and Property
Graham Glenn, Head of Acquisitions & Disposals
Brian Boundy, Facilities Management
Officers summarised the Forward Work Maintenance and Surplus Assets and
Disposals Workstream papers previously. Forecast works were outlined in
addition to planned work in children’s homes and adult care homes. All work
undertaken supported the Greener Futures delivery plan to achieve net zero
by 2030.
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Chairman asked for an indication of the amount of money being
considered for children's homes. Officers explained that there was a
range of £2.7m and £4.3m which would consider the long-term hold of
the property or the medium-term strategy.
2. The Chairman asked if there could be more focus on keeping assets in
good repair. Officers explained that to manage the estate they were
putting in place a risk-based maintenance regime as opposed to a
reactive approach.
Based on that risk and knowledge of our asset condition, officers plan
to put together a program of works for next year and subsequent years
that will meet that that need.
3. The Chairman asked if officers were satisfied they had the required
resources in relation to the surplus assets disposal workstream.
Officers said that they had extra colleagues joining the team in

Page 22

February and were reviewing some of the supply chain activities in
terms of external resources. This would be brought through on the
forward plan for a procurement.
4. The Vice-Chairman asked if more information was available regarding
the spending on external resources secured to bridge the shortfall in
capacity.
Officers said that the external consultants, Turner and Townsend,
were brought in to support specifically selected projects. They had
worked with the capital development team and the relationship had
been utilised to then provide additional resources where there were
vacancies within the project surveying team, bolstering capacity to
deliver the projects that were in the pipeline. The Vice-Chairman
asked how much Turner and Townsend were paid. Officers explained
that they were paid on a fee basis, at a commercially agreed rate per
project and value of those projects.
5. The Chairman queried the reference to maintenance in children's
homes and the excessive amount of time taken for some repairs to be
completed. Officers said that temporary solution were provided but
that sometimes there were delays with supply chains and the
manufacturing of items that needed to be replaced.
Recommendations:
The Resources and Performance Select Committee recommends that
Cabinet Member for Property and Waste ensures that appropriate
maintenance and repairs to the County Council owned properties are not
deferred.
42/21 CABINET MEMBER UPDATE - CABINET MEMBER FOR PROPERTY
(NATALIE BRAMHALL) [Item 7]
Witnesses:
Natalie Bramhall, Cabinet Member for Property
Leigh Whitehouse, Deputy Chief Executive
Simon Crowther, Director – Land and Property
Brian Boundy, Facilities Management
The Cabinet Member for Property and Waste summarised the Property
Update Report including an overview of capital delivery followed by capital
projects.
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Vice-Chairman asked if the service was on track to deliver all
identified projects and asked which ones were causing the most
challenges. The Cabinet Member for Property said that the service
was on track to deliver all items identified as priorities and added that
The Priory School was likely to cause the most challenges.

Page 23

2. The Vice-Chairman asked what was the total value of the disposal of
any assets identified by services as surplus to requirement. The
Cabinet Member for Property said that the figure from the surplus
assets on the balance sheet was £35m excluding an investment
opportunity that would be completing imminently.
3. A Member asked if the September 2023 delivery date for The Priory
School was achievable. An officer explained that a contractor had
recently been engaged under a pre-construction services agreement
for the project and they provided a construction plan and timeline to
deliver the project by September 2023.
4. The Chairman asked what reassurances were there that good project
management was implemented in all cases to avoid costly delays.
Officers said that design processes were being followed for all projects
and stakeholders were signing off at the end of each stage. Design
consultations were taking place with each department throughout to
ensure any problems were identified in good time.
5. The Chairman wished the service luck with the ambitious projects that
were to be delivered and asked if the Select Committee could have
regular updates including being notified of any issues arising which
could cause delays. The Chairman also requested site visits if
practical to enable a genuine understanding of the projects being
discussed. The Cabinet Member for Property and Waste agreed that
site visits would be helpful
43/21 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME AND RECOMMENDATION TRACKER
[Item 8]
The Select Committee noted the Recommendation Tracker and the Forward
Work Programme.
44/21 DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING [Item 9]
The next meeting will be held on 20 January 2022 at 10am

Meeting ended at: 1:01pm
______________________________________________________________
Chairman

Page 24

MINUTES of the meeting of the RESOURCES AND
PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE held at 10.00 am on 20
January 2022 (REMOTE MEETING).
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its
meeting on 14 April 2022.
Elected Members:
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

Nick Darby (Chairman)
Will Forster (Vice-Chair)
Bob Hughes
Rebecca Jennings - Evans
Robert King
Steve McCormick
John Robini
Tony Samuels
Lesley Steeds
Hazel Watson
Jeremy Webster
(* = present at the meeting)

1/21

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]
None received.

2/21

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 17 SEPTEMBER 2021
[Item 2]
The minutes of the Resources and Performance Select Committee held
on 17 December 2021 were reviewed. The minutes will be formally
agreed at the 14 April 2022 Committee Meeting.

21/21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]
None received.
22/21 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS [Item 4]
None received.

Page 25

23/21 DIGITAL BUSINESS AND INSIGHTS PROGRAMME UPDATE
[Item 5]
Witnesses:
Becky Rush, Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources
Leigh Whitehouse, Deputy Chief Executive & Executive Director of
Resources
Andrew Richards, Digital, Business and Insights Programme Manager
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Chairman read out the recommendations made by the
Resources and Performance Select Committee on 8th October
2020, before current membership of the committee was in place:
“The Select Committee is concerned about the tight deadlines,
achievement of savings, and lack of an obvious contingency plan.
Therefore, the Select Committee recommends that there is
assurance put in place demonstrating effective monitoring of risks,
timely review of progress and implementation of next steps”.
Officers were invited to provide an update regarding the delay to the
go-live date and the programme currently. An officer summarised
that a review was undertaken in Autumn 2021 when it was realised
that the planned December go-live was no longer deemed
achievable. This resulted in a re-plan and additional funding request
being put before Cabinet on 21 December 2021. Good progress
had been made towards the April go-live since that point, including
a finalised build of the solution, integrated testing system and
parallel payroll running activity. A Cutover Readiness Checkpoint
will be completed on 28 January 2022 to assess readiness to
progress with the cutover plan for an April go-live and whilst
uncertainty and risks remain, the team continued to focus on the
delivery of the April go-live.
2. The Chairman asked if the material risk to achieving the April go-live
could result in further delay and cost to the Council. An Officer said
that the programme was replacing the existing SAP (Systems and
Applications) system at Surrey County Council (SCC) and would
touch the whole organisation of approximately 10,000 users in
addition to 30,000 external users included in school’s payroll. Backoffice processes across finance, procurement, Human Resources
(HR) and payroll as well as integrations currently in existence for
SAP would be included with the addition of new integrations. The
result was a very large-scale programme and a significant risk of
further delays remained. A Deed of Variation had been agreed to
the existing contract with Unit4 to reflect agreed milestones and to
ensure that SCC was able to exercise its rights fully. Unit4 were
paid on achievement of agreed milestones, with SCC being

Page 26

responsible for delivering its side of the contract to avoid any
additional costs or delays.
3. A Member recalled that the Committee had questioned the Digital,
Business and Insights (DB&I) deadline overview at the Resources
and Performance Select Committee Meeting on 17 September 2021
and received the response that it was too early for an update. A
programme update, was expected at this stage, including
stakeholder board meetings with RAG (Red, Amber, Green) rated
information on processes at that time. There was a concern that
translation mapping of the target source data from the existing SAP
system was not obvious or of sufficient quality and that data
mapping and translation into Unit4 was not completed fully or
accurately. An officer explained that there had been complexity in
understanding how to extract the data and how to transform that
data enabling the load to Unit4. Better coordination and
management from the supplier side to coordinate the rectification of
those data issues had since been developed.
4. A Member queried if at this point the data migration and
transformation had been completed fully or had the process been
exited too early to enable a faster move to begin User Acceptance
Testing (UAT). An Officer said that the data migration was still
ongoing. Data migration supporting cycle five of UAT would
continue and there would be a further full data migration as part of
cutover, up to the go-live date.
5. A Member asked if the reference to insufficient quality of the data
the report referred to insufficient quality of the data in the current
source system or insufficient quality of data in the translation and
implementation into Unit4 from the source. An Officer explained that
the reference referred to both instances.
6. The Chairman asked if there had been sufficient contact with
contracted parties to date. An Officer explained that a full-time data
migration lead had been in post since the beginning of the
programme. The contract with Unit4 specified that they were
required to provide leadership and responsibility for the
programme’s data migration and when a gap was identified, Unit4
provided the additional leadership for finance, procurement, HR and
payroll.
7. A Member questioned why the programme entered the UAT testing
phase without the data migration and data mapping being fully
completed and confirmed. An Officer explained that authorisation
had been given to start UAT with simple aspects of the solution to
progress UAT in the absence of the master data. The expectation
was that in parallel to that, the data migration stream would
complete at the same time. Unfortunately, when the data arrived the
quality was not sufficient, causing difficulties.

Page 27

8. A Member asked what might have been done earlier to avoid
problems and/or mitigate the risks. An Officer explained that lessons
could be learned from the method rather than earlier interventions.
A key piece of feedback to consider going forward was to include a
requirement at the tender stage to have sight of the system at an
earlier stage in the implementation project to enable business
stakeholders to develop a clearer understanding of the solution.
When considering future projects, it would be beneficial to consider
senior stakeholder ownership from within the business. Stipulation
of the requirements of additional resources and more transparency
at the point of data migration would also have benefitted the
process in addition to ensuring contractors communicated changes
to technical environments more clearly
9. A Member asked what the £3 million in additional costs related to.
An Officer explained that the additional costs related to the SCC
programme team and additional supplier costs to enable continued
funding until go-live and the resources required within the threemonth early support period.
10. A Member asked if the use of SAP would continue, if it would still be
supported and were there any risks relating to this. An Officer said
that SAP was supported up to 31 December 2022 which would
allow the County Council to operate even if there were a delay
beyond April 2022. Risks had been mitigated and Her Majesty’s
Revenue and Customs (HMRC) patches had been applied to SAP
to ensure that employees would still be paid correctly in the event of
any difficulties.
11. A Member asked if the project had been defined and analysed
properly. An Officer confirmed the project had been defined and
analysed properly. Clear objectives and design principles had been
considered throughout the process with the project including an
outline business case stage, procurement work completion, senior
management approval and Strategic Investment Board (SIB)
development. An external consultancy had been employed to look
at the strategic options whilst considering the aims of SCC to aid
decisions and development. A lack of transparency with the supplier
had caused some difficulties in addition to the team working
remotely due to COVID-19.
12. The Deputy Chief Executive & Executive Director of Resources
reiterated that the team had been frustrated that it had not been
possible to work to the initial timescale however this was not the
result of a single action or reason as some of the questioning
indicated a desire to identify and it was important to recognise the
huge amounts of good work and progress that had been achieved
within the programme, whilst still being frustrated about the revision
to the timetable. Internal audit had been scrutinising events and

Page 28

highlighting concerns to the programme board where appropriate,
lessons had been learnt and future SCC projects would benefit from
these experiences.
13. A Member queried the feedback from staff testing the new system.
An Officer summarised that feedback had been positive overall.
There had been some frustration with data quality during the early
stages but they had moved forward to putting the system through its
paces.
14. A Member asked if lessons learned would be conveyed to the
districts and boroughs. An officer said that this would be fed into the
programme management part of the process when the project had
closed.
15. The Chairman observed that the main issues for delayed delivery of
the project concentrated around data transfer and changing data
and by early September it had become clear that the project was
not deliverable within the timescale. The Chairman asked if the
project board and Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources were
aware of the difficulties prior to this point. The Cabinet Member for
Finance and Resources explained that the Select Committee
meeting took place before the date of the project board and at that
time negotiations with Unit4 were taking place. Discussions were
taking place to identify solutions and following the decision at the
board it was a priority to negotiate shared costs and draw a plan to
mitigate risk going forward however timing sensitivity meant that
these plans could not be discussed openly at the last Select
Committee meeting, by when the decision to revise the date had not
been made.
16. The Chairman said that issues had been identified in May and June
2021 and was concerned that it had only become in apparent in
September 2021 that the project would not be deliverable within the
given timeframe. The Select Committee voiced concerns regarding
the project 15 months ago and without being overly hard on those
involved, things had been missed. What was the project boards
involvement during this time as it appeared that those intimately
involved did not have control on events. An Officer explained that
items reported to the project board during the summer related to
some workstreams within the program but the supplier continued its
reassurances that the programme remained deliverable in line with
initial targets. The potential for elements of the programme to slide
became apparent during August and September 2021 with the
Select Committee meeting a week before the project board agreed
to delay the go-live date. At this point the programme board were
presented with three options, proceed as planned with 1 December
2021 go-live and consider risks around that, a phased option with
some elements to go-live on 1 December and some to implemented
subsequently and lastly, to move the entire go live date.

Page 29

17. A Member asked why User Acceptance Testing (UAT) of cycle five
had begun before completing cycle four. An officer said that a new
data migration load had impacted progress on UAT with a decision
made to refresh the environment and begin a longer cycle five to 18
February 2022. Although not an ideal position to be in, the level of
testing gained momentum during December 2021 and was
continuing.
Resolved:
The Resources and Performance Select Committee:
1. Asks Cabinet Member to ensure that robust governance and

project management arrangements – with proactive controls,
testing and regular monitoring – be put in place in order to
ensure lessons are learnt by Surrey County Council from this
delay in the Digital Business and Insights project that has
resulted in additional cost to the Council.
2. Requests that the Cabinet Member inform the Select Committee

what the above arrangement will look like in practice and ensure
this is undertaken by April 2022 in time for the new financial year
and beyond. This should include any feedback and comments
from the internal audit and the Council’s Audit and Governance
Committee.
3. Requests Cabinet Member to offer to share any learning on this

issue with districts and boroughs in Surrey who are or might be
going through a similar digital journey in terms of project
management.

24/21 CAPITAL INVESTMENT AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY 2022/23 [Item 6]
Witnesses:
Becky Rush, Cabinet Member for Finance & Resources
Anna D’Alessandro, Finance Director – Corporate & Commercial
Mark Hak-Sanders, Strategic Finance Business Partner

Key points raised during the discussion:
1. An Officer introduced the report, providing an overview of how
the strategy would fit within Surrey County Council’s overall
budget papers and processes.

Page 30

2. A Member questioned if the Select Committee could have
access to specific training on this matter. An Officer said that this
was offered to Audit and Governance Committee and could be
made available to Members of the Resources and Performance
Select Committee.
3. A Member stated that it would be beneficial to offer all
Committee Members property portfolio seminars or a Members
Seminar for this fast-changing subject. The Chairman agreed.
Actions/further information to be provided:
1. The Strategic Finance Business to arrange for training to be
made available for Committee Members.
2. The Strategic Finance Business Partner to organise a property
portfolio Member Seminar going forward.

23/21 AGILE OFFICE ESTATE STRATEGY [Item 7]
Witnesses:
Natalie Bramhall, Cabinet Member for Property and Waste
Leigh Whitehouse, Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director for
Resources
Simon Crowther, Director – Land and Property
Matthew Pizii, Client Account Manager
Dominic Barlow, Assistant Director, - Corporate Landlord
Brendon Kavanagh, Portfolio Lead – Corporate
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Chairman thanked the service for the detailed reports. The
item went to Cabinet in December 2021 and it was decided that
it should also be presented to the Resources and Performance
Select Committee. Cabinet approved a potential spend just in
excess of £20 million with further strategy, analysis and
subsequent cabinet approval in light of those outcomes.
2. A Member asked if it would be better value for money to
refurbish Quadrant Court than to sell it and find a suitable
alternative site, it was asked why SCC seemed averse to
refurbishing its existing properties. The Cabinet Member for
Property and Waste said that the current requirement was to
provide a healthy, fit for purpose, energy efficient space for staff
and it would be difficult to create energy efficiency at Quadrant
Court. As agreed at Cabinet, the team were reviewing a wider

Page 31

scope of options. The County Councils property strategies
needed to be dynamic and adaptable over time with the County
Council refurbishing buildings where the strategy was for longer
term retention.
3. A Member, in relation to the Cabinet Member for Property and
Waste’s comment that buildings were not renovated if there
were no plans to retain them, noted that if property was not
regularly updated an incentive for closure was created. The
Cabinet Member for Property and Waste conveyed that a new
team within Land and Property had undertaken work to improve,
change and move with the times.
4. A Member queried the potential move of Adult Social Care local
teams out of district and borough offices and asked had the
impact to district and borough finances been considered. The
Cabinet Member for Property and Waste concluded that Surrey
County Council ensured good working partnerships whilst
prioritising its own financial position and the critical services
funded through a limited budget. With current financial
pressures, all public bodies were looking at how to deliver
modernised space at the best value. Districts and boroughs
would be able to define individual impacts as the program
progressed. Discussions were ongoing with potential partners to
co-locate as part of options reviewed as already facilitated at
Woodhatch Place. Place based assessments of all Surrey
County Council’s decisions enabled consideration of projects
and opportunities in and around the districts and boroughs as
part of the final decision for relocating teams. Development of
the Agile Offices Estate Strategy had been commercially
sensitive, however, engagement with the boroughs and districts
began in December last year ahead of Cabinet and a detailed
sequence of discussions would commence soon with the
majority of proposed moves due for November 2023. The
Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director for Resources
explained that the Cabinet report had been shared with
colleagues in districts and boroughs and following reviews of
locations within their buildings. The reaction being one of
recognition and understanding and in many cases aligning with
their plans to review accommodation requirements. Decisions
would not be made to leave any short-term difficult decisions
and actions would be undertaken over a period of time, allowing
for quality engagement. Feedback had been positive so far.

Page 32

5. A Member asked if the Service had taken into account travel
distances for staff as a result of office moves and the impact on
climate change targets. The Cabinet Member for Property and
Waste stated that one benefit of providing a standardised agile
workspace was that staff were moved away from having to
commute to a single office location every day. Staff would be
assigned an administration base for HR purposes but would
have the ability to work from varied locations, reducing travel
times and costs.
6. A Member asked if housing provision could be considered when
an office building is being disposed of. The Cabinet Member for
Property and Waste confirmed that housing was a consideration
each time a property was brought forward.
7. The Chairman noted dilemmas faced by SCC in relation to what
should be spent to provide efficient value for money options and
to improve our carbon efficiency.
8. A Member asked if a full public sector office estate portfolio
survey had been carried out to enable partly used buildings to be
utilised. The Cabinet Member for Property explained that
discussions were ongoing with partners to determine options for
co-location. Most local government bodies in Surrey were also
reviewing the way that they work and what form of office space
was required going forward. A significant engagement
programme had been undertaken to ensure the transformation
would not impact the delivery of services but would enhance
delivery and collaboration wherever possible. A Member
requested that the Committee be provided with information
relating to this in due course.
9. A Member was concerned to learn that district teams were to be
moved out of districts and boroughs and queried the
dissemination of information regarding this. An Officer explained
that Surrey Chief Executives had been updated before
Christmas 2021 to cascade information throughout the districts
and boroughs. There was enthusiasm for a partnership solution
and positive engagement in looking at solutions with the
intention of ensuring the right space for the right purpose.
10. A Member asked if it had been considered how residents would
travel to relocated offices given that public transport could be
problematic and the fact that lower income families may not own
cars. An Officer agreed that the connectivity and accessibility of
our agile office estate would be critical with a key factor of the
programme being that SCC can deliver for residents. Locations
were being considered with staff and residents in mind.

Page 33

11. A Member noted that some administration departments did not
need to be located at sites were residents visited as these
departments could be accessed via email or telephone. The
Cabinet Member for Property and Waste confirmed that a review
of asset utilisation and condition was planned to rationalise the
estate to ensure it's was affordable and fit for purpose. As with
all organisations, new ways of working needed to be tested post
COVID-19 with a long-term strategy to deliver modern,
accessible and healthy workspaces staff whilst having the
flexibility to adapt and at minimal cost. An Officer said that
detailed staff service engagement had been undertaken
throughout the COVID-19 pandemic to understand methods of
bringing services to residents. Consideration of other
transformation projects to changing the ways of working in
conjunction with those cited within the greener futures remit was
ongoing. The use of Surrey Office of Data Analytics had been
incorporated to look at the socio-economic picture across
Surrey, overlaying that with staff locations. All demands had
been considered to determine the best place for of our offices to
be.
12. The Chairman asked if there was confidence that Woodhatch
Place would remain the headquarters of SCC. The Cabinet
Member for Property and Waste confirmed that Woodhatch
Place would remain the headquarters of SCC.
13. The Chairman asked if there was a strategy to cover the current
maintenance backlog of offices and over what timescale. The
Cabinet Member for Property and Waste confirmed that the
maintenance backlog would decrease as the size of the estate
was reduced to a more modernised a footprint over the next four
years.
14. The Chairman asked how the Committee could review and make
recommendations before the next report was submitted to
Cabinet. The Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director for
Resources stated that options were currently being reviewed
and once set out could be discussed with the Committee before
Cabinet. The Chairman agreed that this would be welcome and
it was important that Members of the Committee should be
informed with regards to the strategy, with further involvement
before Cabinet preferred.
Actions/further information to be provided:
1. The Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Resources to
discuss options for consideration with the Resources and
Performance Select Committee prior to Cabinet.

Page 34

Resolved:
The Resources and Performance Select Committee:
1. Asks Cabinet Member to ensure that an adequate
regular repairs programme with corresponding annual
maintenance budget is in place and reflected in the
Directorate/Council’s budget for 2022/23 and beyond.
2. Requests Cabinet Member to share the result of Surrey’s public
sector office estate portfolio survey/audit with the Select
Committee.
3. Asks Cabinet Member: to consider how best to work jointly with
boroughs, districts and other partners in terms of the effective
utilisation of the Council’s office estate; ensure that all Surrey
County Council office estate buildings are accessible to
residents; and support net zero and climate change ambitions.
4. A briefing to be provided to the Select Committee once a further
paper to Cabinet has been prepared but before a decision is
taken.
The Chairman paused the meeting at 12.28pm for a comfort break. The
meeting was resumed at 12.35pm

26/21 COMMERCIAL INVESTMENT PROPERTY [Item 8] [Part Two
discussion internal record only, not for publication]
Witnesses:
Becky Rush, Cabinet Member for Finance & Resources
Natalie Bramhall, Cabinet Member for Property & Waste
Anna D’Alessandro, Director – Corporate, Finance & Commercial
Simon Crowther, Director – Land & Property
Ryan Curran, Senior Development Manager
Paul Forrester, Strategic Finance Business Partner

The Cabinet Member for Property and Waste introduced a Part 2 report
containing information which was exempt from Access to Information
requirements by virtue of paragraph 3 – Information relating to the

Page 35

financial or business affairs of any particular person (including
commercially sensitive information to the bidding companies)
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Select Committee discussed the exempt annexes asking
questions of the witnesses under Part 2 conditions.
Resolved:
The Resources and Performance decided to make its
recommendations public:
1. Asks the Service/Cabinet Member to share with the Select
Committee yearly revaluation reports for Surrey and Halsey
Garton properties annually, as soon as available; and
2. Requests the Cabinet Member to consider establishing a standalone Council wide strategic Member Asset Advisory Panel
to assist decision making and oversight of the strategy in respect
of the property portfolio
26/21 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK
PROGRAMME [Item 9]

The Select Committee noted the Recommendation Tracker and the
Forward Work Programme.

27/21 DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING: 14 APRIL 2022 [Item 10]

The Committee noted its next meeting would be held on 14 April 2022.

Meeting ended at: 1.38pm
_______________________________________________________

Chairman

Page 36

Item 5
NOTES OF RESOURCES AND PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
PERFORMANCE MONITORING SESSION
20 December 2021 (Remote and Informal Meeting)
Members:

Nick Darby (Chairman)
Will Forster (Vice Chairman)
David Harmer
Lesley Steeds
Hazel Watson

Officers:

Peter Dell’Osa, Strategic Lead- Performance Insight
Nikki O’Connor, Strategic Finance Business Partner
Tom Pooley, Performance, Assurance and Risk Lead
Richard Stockley, Head of Research
Gary Strudwick, Head of Business Intelligence
Rachel Wigley, Director, Finance, Insights and Performance

Key points arising from the discussion:
1. The Chairman introduced the session highlighting the opportunity for the
Select Committee to review performance monitoring indicators under its remit.
2. The Head of Business Intelligence summarised performance highlights for
customers, residents, HR and Organisational Development and resources
areas.
Customers
3. A Member asked for more information regarding significant differences in call
waiting times at different times of the day and understanding any reasons for
the delay with a view to more staffing during busier times. An Officer said that
was technology available to provide this data and this would be investigated.
ACTION.
4. A Member noted that Education Highways call waiting times were high and
needed to be followed up to determine any problems and what is being done
to tackle them, a call to Highways could be an urgent safety matter. An Officer
agreed to raise this as part of the previous analysis request. ACTION.
5. A Member asked if there were statistics available for the longest waiting times
and could callers that abandon calls as they are no longer willing to wait be
included. An Officer said that this would be investigated with the service and
would provide a response. ACTION

Page 37

Residents
6. A Member noted the results were worse but still on target and asked what the
reasons for this were. An Officer explained that the first reason was that more
residents were at home because of the pandemic and able to receive and make
calls more easily, resulting in a higher level of feedback. Secondly, because of
the pandemic, more residents accessed services and support and provided
feedback which may not have been the case previously.
7. A Member said that knowing why results were worse is useful but for Quarter
four they were more negative and asked was performance worse towards the
end of the year. An Officer confirmed that it was quarter four of the financial,
not calendar year.
HR and Organisational Development
8. A Member noted both areas highlighted in red remain unchanged from previous
reports and said that change could be affected quickly when ensuring actions
taken are going in the right direction.
9. A Member noted that the Reasonable Adjustments Team would impact
recruitment positively especially in terms of interviewing, as local and nonspecialist staff may not have the expertise required for employing those with
disabilities adding that it would be useful to have a report from that team. An
officer confirmed that a report would be provided. ACTION.
10. A Member asked what the basis of the targets was and why they differed from
Census statistics. An Officer confirmed that a response would be provided at
the next meeting. An Officer said it would be useful if a response from HR could
be provided before the next Select Committee meeting. ACTION
11. A Member requested more information regarding targets be provided in relation
to employing staff under thirty. An Officer said that different departments had
different difficulties.
12. A Member noted the need for 100 per cent recruitment to vacant posts.
13. A Member said that there should be focus on encouraging those currently
employed to remain satisfied with appropriate actions taken before they
consider leaving.
14. A Member asked if the Council was proactive and represented at employment
fairs and universities. An Officer confirmed that a response to this question
would be provided at the next meeting. ACTION

Page 38

Transformation
15. A Member asked if departments had provided clear direction regarding their
requirements to Digital Transformation. An Officer said that it may be the case
that clear direction had not been provided, confirming that Digital was a theme
running through The Track 2 approach and would be looked at going forward.
16. A Member asked if the delay in ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) had been
resolved and was April 2022 still achievable. An Officer confirmed the plan for
1 April 2022 was still on track, explaining that delays were because of an issue
with transferring data to the test system which has now been resolved.

Actions:
i.

Gary Strudwick to see if call waiting times vary at different times of the day,
their underlying reasons and whether more staff are available to take calls in
busy periods

ii.

Gary Strudwick to investigate the reason for high call waiting times for
Directorates with significantly increased waiting times, particularly Highways.

iii.

Gary Strudwick to investigate if statistics include customers that have
abandoned calls because of long waiting times.

iv.

Gary Strudwick to approach HR about the Reasonable Adjustments Team to
enable better understanding of the work being done to support recruitment of
disabled staff

v.

Gary Strudwick to ask HR for feedback regarding the basis of BAME and staff
with disabilities targets

vi.

Gary Strudwick to ask HR for feedback relating to proactive attendance at
university and employment fairs, particularly for under 30s recruitment.

Date of next meeting:
21 March 2022

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 6
RESOURCES AND PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE

THURSDAY 14 APRIL 2022

Supported Independent Living – Design and Construction

Purpose of report: To inform the Select Committee of the Supported Independent
Living Cabinet Report scheduled for Tuesday 26 April 2022.

Introduction:
1.

The “Supported Independent Living Programme – Batch 1 Development” report
will be presented to Cabinet on 26 April 2022, seeking Cabinet approval for £24
million of capital funding to develop three sites for Supported Independent
Living (SIL) accommodation.

2.

The three sites, collectively referred to as “Batch 1”, are: the former Manor
School in Byfleet; the former Horley Library, Horley and Coveham Hostel in
Cobham. The Cabinet report proposes developing a total of 44 SIL units across
the three Batch 1 sites, providing accommodation for local residents with a
learning difficulty and/or autism.

3.

Financial information relating to the Batch 1 sites is commercially confidential at
this time and is set out in the Part 2 report.

Background
Cabinet report July 2019
4.

Cabinet approved the Council’s Accommodation with Care and Support (AwCS)
strategy and five-year ambition to reduce the number of people with a learning
disability and/or autism living in residential care by 40-50 per cent and
significantly increase the SIL provision in Surrey.

Cabinet report November 2020
5.

Cabinet approved the Council’s ambition to deliver at least 500 new, diverse
SIL accommodation units (i.e. a mix of self-contained apartments, shared

Page 41

housing, and Shared Living) and to develop at least 110 of the units on Councilowned sites. A need to overhaul the Short Breaks offer was also referenced in
this report as part of the overall delivery strategy.
Cabinet report June 2021
6.

Cabinet approved £1.9 million of Mid-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) capital
funding to undertake feasibility assessments (site due diligence, legal reports,
ecological and survey reports) at four in-principle SIL sites: the former Manor
School, Byfleet; the former Horley Library, Horley; Coveham Hostel, Cobham;
and The Squirrels in Banstead for SIL and Short Breaks provision.

7.

The report also sets out the Adult Social Care (ASC) Service vision to provide
fully accessible residential accommodation for working age adults, creating fit
for purpose homes for local residents with a learning disability and/or autism
which meet their long-term accommodation requirements and support needs.

8.

Following Cabinet approval for feasibility funding, The Squirrels in Banstead
was found to be not suitable for both SIL and Short Breaks accommodation due
to Care Quality Commission (CQC) guidelines for such developments. The
CQC requires such developments to be small scale, domestic in nature and not
have the look and feel of a campus. As a result, the ASC Service recommended
that The Squirrels should be used for Short Breaks to fulfil the requirement for
this type of provision, and not be included in the Batch 1 sites. The feasibility
funding allocated to The Squirrels is ring-fenced for future investigations/
surveys of this site.

Overview: Supported Independent Living Programme – Batch 1 development
9.

The report being submitted to Cabinet in April 2022 recommends that Cabinet
approves £24 million of capital funding for the design and construction of
Supported Independent Living accommodation at the Batch 1 sites. The
schemes will provide 44 of the 110 SIL accommodation units, on Surrey County
Council (SCC) owned sites, as set out in the November 2020 Cabinet report.

10. Table 1 details the Batch 1 site locations and optimum number of SIL units for
each site.

Page 42

Table 1: Batch 1 site locations and SIL units
Batch 1 Schemes – location
Former Manor School,
Magdalen Crescent, Byfleet
KT14 7SR
Former Horley Library, 102
Victoria Road, Horley RH6
7QH
Coveham Hostel, Anyards
Road, Cobham KT11 2LJ

District &
Borough

Site
available

Optimum no. of SIL units
Shared Individual Total

Woking

2018

10

6

16

Reigate &
Banstead

2022

10

6

16

Elmbridge

2022

0

12

12

TOTAL

20

24

44

Design Specification
11. The Supported Independent Living Batch 1 schemes are designed to meet the
long-term accommodation and care requirements for residents with support
needs, including complex needs arising from physical and/or learning
disabilities, autism, brain injury, or mental health issues.
12. The ASC Service and technical advisors were consulted, and had input, on the
design to ensure the schemes not only satisfy the required specialist provision
but are also future-proofed. To this end, higher-than-average specialist resident
accommodation standards have been applied, with outstanding amenities
including private gardens and spaces.
13. The Batch 1 schemes will exceed Nationally Described Space Standards
(NDSS) to cater for the residents’ needs and enable the following:
 M4(2) adaptable dwellings to include sufficient space for the resident and
one or two care workers.
 M4(3) wheelchair user dwellings to include additional area to accommodate
the increased activity zones and functionality of wheelchair users and their
care workers.
 M4(3) dwellings will be designed to wheelchair user standards e.g. a
wheelchair user is able to live in the dwelling and have the ability to use any
outdoor space, parking and communal facilities.
14. Design elements, as listed below, were approved by the ASC Commissioning
and Occupational Therapist teams and have been approved by the ASC Senior
Responsible Officer.
 Amenity Space: Following best practice guidance (for the design of spaces
for people with autism) specific interventions and adaptations to the

Page 43

landscape scheme have been made. This includes variations in the level of
sensory stimulation, the creation of distinct zones some of which are
deliberately designed to encourage social interaction, and others which are
more private in nature. Providing a physical sense of movement was
something encouraged in the feedback received from the Occupational
Therapists, so the inclusion of a swing seat for each site has now been
proposed. Areas which provide shelter from the elements are also
embedded into the design, and particular treatments for specific boundaries
have also been considered.
 Sustainability: The Council has committed to achieving Net-Zero Carbon for
Council Operations by 2030, with Surrey County to achieve Net-Zero Carbon
by 2050. There isn’t a countywide strategy in place which defines
sustainability targets to be achieved or specific approaches and measures
that should be considered. The SIL scheme design is intended to deliver
energy efficient buildings which will have low operating costs. The
Consultant team are working to incorporate designs for super-insulated
facilities with highly efficient electrical and mechanical services. This should
result in buildings which are low cost to operate. As such, for the current SIL
schemes to meet the Council’s sustainability and Net-Zero aims, the
following principles are proposed.
-

Fabric first approach
All electric buildings
Low carbon, low-cost heating solutions
Maximise onsite renewable energy generation
Enhanced control of energy use
Measure the embodied carbon
Sustainable use of water resources
Resource efficiency
Encourage active transport and low/zero carbon motorised mobility
Biodiversity and ecology
Healthy living places
Smart Building

15. The Batch 1 schemes will be designed to deliver energy efficient buildings,
which will result in lower fuel bills for the residents and meet the Council’s NetZero Carbon (NZC) target. The schemes’ specifications are in accordance with
LETI (London Energy Transformation Initiative) guidelines, the most widely
accepted low carbon standards. Energy efficient measures include enhanced
insulation, and highly efficient electrical and mechanical services; the buildings
will also maximise renewable energy output through solar panels and run nongas, low carbon heating systems, resulting in reducing energy costs for the
residents by at least 65 per cent per month, based on the energy and carbon
assessment investigations by the Council’s Sustainability Consultant.

Page 44

Planning
16. The Council’s Legal consultant has reviewed Title Plans and Reports for the
Batch 1 schemes and confirms there are no restrictive covenants for any of the
sites.
17. Pre-Planning application reviews have been held with Surrey County Council’s
Reg 3 team and comments received are under review by the Consultant design
team. The main feedback to be addressed in subsequent engagement is as
follows:
a. Proposal does not reflect the surrounding vernacular or character of the area:
therefore, material selection and colours to be in keeping with locality.
b. Design to consider overlooking adjoining properties.
c. Non-conformance with site allocation policies set in 2006 has led to scheduled
detailed discussions with District and Borough Councils.
d. Demonstration of Net Gain Biodiversity (NGB): overall, opportunities should
be included on the site to increase tree cover, landscaping, and opportunities
for NGB.
Next Steps
18. The key milestones and timescales as set out in Table 2 below are subject to
change, depending on:
 Cabinet approval of the proposals and recommendations in the April 2022
Cabinet report.
 Market engagement.
Table 2: Key Milestones and Timescales
Key milestones
Royal Institute of British Architects (RIBA) Stage 3:
Design and Planning
Royal Institute of British Architects (RIBA) Stage 4:
Technical Design
Preparation of Main Contractor Invitation to Tender
(ITT) documentation
Public engagement
Consideration of all comments and feedback, approval
of same by Project team with amendments by
consultant, and ASC team to communicate outcomes
and/or issues to Members
Full planning application for all three sites will be
submitted on 27 May 2022 by the Planning Consultant
team to the Surrey County Council Reg 3 team
Contract award, appointment, and mobilisation on site
Construction period
Handover (Including Operational Mobilisation)

Page 45

Target
Start

Target
Complete

Jan 2022

Mar 2022

Apr 2022

May 2022

Apr 2022

Oct 2022

May 2022

May 2022

Apr 2022

Jun 2022

Jun 2022

Oct 2022

Jan 2023
Jan 2023
Mar 2024

Mar 2023
Mar 2024
May 2024

19. Proposals for the SIL Batch 2 Programme will be submitted to Cabinet at a
future date. The works associated with The Squirrels (Banstead) and the Short
Breaks programme will be submitted to Cabinet as part of the Batch 3 schemes,
again, at a future date.

Conclusions:
20. People with learning disabilities and/or who are autistic are one of the most
socially excluded groups in our society, primarily as a result of an historical
segregation of services that it is now recognised unintentionally deny people
independence, choice and control, and social inclusion.
21. Supported Living properties are predominantly designed as “homes for life”;
building specifications take into account changing needs over the life course,
shared living arrangements can also act as a stepping-stone whereby people
can be supported to develop their independent living skills and community
connections before moving into self-contained accommodation (either specialist
or general needs).

Recommendations:
22. It is recommended that the Resources and Performance Committee:
a) Notes and endorses the contents of this report.

Report contact
Elaine McKenna
Contact details
07368 126653 | elaine.mckenna@surreycc.gov.uk
Appendices
Appendix A: Surveys undertaken for SIL sites
Sources/background papers:
 Key principles of Supported Independent Living
 Community Vision for Surrey in 2030

Page 46

 Cabinet report, 26 July 2019: Adult Social Care Accommodation with Care and
Support Strategy for Extra Care Housing for Older People and Independent Living
Schemes for adults with a learning disability and/or autism (Item no, 129/19)
 Cabinet report, 24 November 2020: Transformation of Accommodation based
Care and Support for Working Age Adults: Delivering Supported Living Options
(Item no. 187/20)
 Cabinet report, 29 June 2021: Supported Independent Living – Feasibility Study
(Item 127/21)

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A
Appendix A: Surveys undertaken for Supported Independent Living Sites
 Noise & Acoustic Survey
 Air Quality Testing
 Bat presence/likely absence survey / report
 Drainage CCTV
 Ground Investigation – Desktop
 Ground Source Heat Pump (GSHP) Desktop studies / site borehole tests
 Flood Risk Assessment
 Intrusive Ground Investigation – Geotechnical / Geo-environmental
 Refurbishment & Demolition (R&D) (intrusive) Asbestos Survey & Report
 Soil Investigation Survey
 Transport Feasibility Survey
 Underground Utilities GPR Survey
 Unexploded Ordnance

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 10
RESOURCES AND PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE

Thursday 14 April 2022

People & Change Development Update

Purpose of report:
The report provides an update on key focus areas within People & Change and gives
an overview of the main projects of work that are in train as part of the next stage of
the Workforce of the Future Strategy that was last presented to Corporate
Leadership Team (CLT) and People, Performance and Development Committee
(PPDC) in September 2021.
Introduction:
1.

One of the key challenges that the council faces within the People & Change
arena is the attraction and recruitment of candidates, particularly recruiting
younger candidates, candidates with disabilities and those from ethnic
minorities. This in turn has an impact on the diversity of the workforce and the
ability to reflect the current demographics of the county. For example, whilst
the proportion of employees under 30 years old is improving (currently around
12.5 per cent) and is higher proportionately than the 2011 Census Surrey
demographic data of nine per cent, we would like to improve this to 16 per cent
of the workforce in 2022.

2.

The recruitment challenge is highlighted in the comparison of new vacancies
advertised in 2021 below, versus those advertised in 2020. In addition the 2022
numbers show no easing in terms of vacancies in the first three months of the
year.

Year:

Total Number of
Adverts Posted:

2020
2021
2022

1786
2549
525

Total Number of
Appointments
Made:
2593
3053
502

Page 63

Total Number of
Applications
Received:
36416
32268
582

3.

The retention of staff in the current market is challenging, particularly within the
social care and social work sectors, where the issues are longer standing and
more complex, due to budget pressures and affordability of candidates. The
national average for voluntary turnover is currently around 15 per cent and
whilst Surrey’s average is around 13 per cent, this rises to just over 20 per cent
for Social Workers within Children’s service.

4.

The recruitment market is a candidate-driven one, which means that it is even
harder to attract and retain the best candidates. Councils are competing for the
same candidates, which has an adverse effect on pay rates, further impacting
on budgets. There continues to be significant focus on social care and social
work sectors from our permanent and temporary resourcing teams, with a
particular lens on the conversion of temporary workers to permanent contracts.

Areas of Focus for 2022
5.

Future Programmes of Work have been identified following a Stocktake of the
Workforce of the Future projects in November 2021. The People & Change
Programme Management Office (PMO) will coordinate 18 different programmes
of work across the following Workforce of the Future Categories:
a) Employee Experience programmes:
Reward Reform
Wellbeing
Equality, Diversity & Inclusion (EDI) Representation
Personalised Intranet & Policies
EDI Inclusion & Belonging
b) Leadership and Development programmes:
Agile Organisation Programme
Succession Planning
Talent Management
c) Resourcing and Workforce Design programmes:
Affordability & Twin Track
Resourcing Process
Joint Venture
Blended Resourcing
Children’s Workforce Planning
d) Insights programmes:
Digital, Business & Insights
Monthly Storytelling
Digital Workforce

Page 64

These are further enabled by two additional programmes of work on the
transformation of Business Operations and the Design & Change Review.
Some of the areas of work are corporate programmes, such as the Agile
Organisation Programme, but are underpinned by People & Change in terms of
preparing and supporting the organisation through change and therefore require
a project plan to support the work required to deliver the programme
successfully.
The Programme Management Office will drive the progress of these
programmes to ensure successful and timely delivery to the rest of the
organisation.
Updates will be taken to CLT and PPDC on a regular basis to ensure that the
work is on track and that the service is delivering to schedule on its planned
projects.
6.

Employee Reference Groups (ERG’s) were set up in 2021 to provide support
for specific groups of employees who may experience discrimination and to
help enable the organisation to better understand and address diversity issues
in a collaborative way. The Council currently has eight ERG’s:
• Disabled Employees Network in Surrey
• Deaf Employees Network
• Parent Network
• Carers Network
• Minority Ethnic Group and Allies
• Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Intersex, Queer/questioning,
Asexual (LGBTQ+) Network
• Early Careers Network
• Women’s Network
6.1 The ERG’s all have an Executive and Cabinet Sponsor to support them
in their work. Each ERG is in a different stage of development and
maturity. Some have a wide membership, agreed terms of reference and
agreed objectives or work plans outlining what they aim to achieve,
whilst others are still focussed on recruiting members and agreeing ERG
officer roles.
6.2 To support the development and influence of our ERG’s, a 12-month
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion, Implementation Consultant role has
been created and recruited to. This role will work with the ERG’s and
support them to develop sustainable structures, effective communication
and agreed annual objectives. This role will work very closely with EDI
colleagues, ensuring that we have the systems in place to make SCC an
inclusive place to work and to assist in our attraction of candidates from
more diverse groups across the county.

Page 65

6.3

The EDI Forum provides a space for all ERG’s (and trades unions) to
meet to share their work, experiences and make recommendations to the
EDI Change Group. The terms of reference of the forum are currently
under review, in collaboration with the ERG’s, with the aim of giving the
forum more structure and strengthening its relationship with the EDI
Change Group, as well as better scrutiny over actions and issues that
are raised by members.

7 As part of the council’s work last year to develop an Employee Value
Proposition (EVP), research was undertaken to determine what aspects of
employee experience both current and prospective Surrey County Council
(SCC) staff valued most from their jobs. This research included a literature
review of global and national workforce trends; focus groups for current SCC
employees; additional EVP related questions within the Pulse Survey and a
survey of prospective staff by the Recruitment Team. This work found the
following:
What aspects of
What do you
employee
think SCC does
experience do
well
you value the
(as an
most?
employer)?
Ranking (in order of importance)
1
Recognition and
Positive work
career progression environment

What do you think
SCC does not do
well (as an
employer)?

What could SCC
do better
(as an
employer)?

Benefits system

2

Salary and reward

Limited career
progression
opportunities

3

Agile/flexible
working and
positive work
environment

Providing a
consistent
employee
experience
Recognition for
work and realising
employee
potential
Better benefits
system

Agile/flexible
working and
interesting place
to work
Helping the
community

Unmanageable
workloads

For younger staff and/or those in the early stages of their careers, the following
was found to be of most importance:
a) Career progression
b) Opportunities to gain experience of working in different roles across an
organisation
c) Wellbeing and work-life balance and opportunities to work in a flexible way.
Work will begin in 2022 to identify and prioritise the changes to working
practice and culture that is needed to meet the expectations and values of
current and prospective employees and to implement the different elements of
our Employee Value Proposition.

Page 66

8

New work streams have been initiated within our Early Careers Programme,
with the goal of attracting young talent and increasing the percentage of
employees under the age of 30, which is one of the Key Performance
Indicators (KPI’s) regularly reported to Committee.
There are two main elements to the Early Careers project now underway,
which are detailed below. These workstreams will contribute to the outcomes
of the Workforce of the Future programme and the insights and approaches
designed with them will be used within Directorates to inform future talent
strategy and resourcing practices.

8.1

Creating attractive developmental routes into the organisation for those who
are early in their career by focusing on maximising and relaunching
opportunities such as:
a) ‘On the job’ schemes such as Apprenticeships which provide a unique
opportunity for social mobility and a range of diverse talent to enter the
workforce at all levels of the organisation.
b) Work placements, T Levels, (technical work placement qualifications which
are a new alternative to A’ levels), and Research placements which serve to
bring fresh ideas into the organisation on projects, have the potential to
inspire the next generation of Local Government employee and, where paid,
will enable us to tap into the gig economy
c) Continuing to recruit Leadership and Management trainees through the
National Graduate Development Programme (NGDP)

8.2

Developing the experience and career progression of our current employees
under 25 to inform our plan to become an employer of choice for young
people. The initial focus will be to:
a) Engage current employees under 25 through focus groups and other
methods to capture their current experience at SCC, from a support,
development and career progression/prospects perspective (start April 2022)
b) External research with organisations such a Youth Employment UK to
benchmark against (start March 2022)

9

Pay

9.1 At its meeting on 1 March 2022, PPDC approved a new simplified payment in
respect of unsocial hours worked by staff in Adults and Children’s Social Care.
Trades unions are balloting their members and it is hoped that the scheme will
come into effect from 1 April 2022.

Page 67

9.2 Work is underway on producing a pay offer to staff on Surrey Pay. It is intended
that an offer will be made to trades unions in late March/early April 2022.
9.3 The offer will focus on pay and pay related benefits such a pay progression and
benefits.
9.4 There will also be a focus on the cost of living and proposals are currently being
explored and evaluated, to mitigate the impact on staff.
10. Resourcing
2022 has seen a national record of job vacancies in comparison to 2020, where
there were four unemployed people for every job in the UK, the ratio is now one
for one. This leads to huge competition for candidates across all sectors.
Applications have dropped considerably in the social care sector, but also in a
number of skilled roles which were historically held by senior, experienced
professionals e.g., waste and highways.
As a result of the above, efforts are being focused on attracting candidates by
using the following methods:
a. Analysing traffic source data to understand what digital platforms are resulting
in hires and using these leads to further sponsor our roles in the relevant
online fora so they are better optimised and reach appropriate audiences.
b. Trialling new products such as Indeed Hiring Days for urgent roles which
allow for a swift connection between hiring managers and candidates,
meaning time to hire may be reduced.
c. Ensuring we have a consistent yet diverse approach to reaching passive
candidates through social media channels, advertising in magazines,
websites and handbook updates and webinars.
d. Working in partnership with Department for Work and Pensions (DWP),
National Citizen Service and National Health Service (NHS) employment
support groups to better link local candidates who are being supported back
into work with our opportunities and hiring managers.
e. Working closely with a high volume of hiring managers to review their
recruitment and tailoring advert wording, application processes and
supporting them in best practice to ensure they can adapt to candidates’
needs.
f. Regularly attending webinars and seminars and feeding any insights and data
back to hiring teams to connect them more to the changes in the external
market.
g. Reviewing our recruitment and resourcing policies with Equality and Diversity
leads to ensure our processes are inclusive.

Page 68

10.1

The set-up of our own temporary recruitment agency, Connect2Surrey, as a
Limited Liability Partnership with Commercial Services Kent Ltd, also means
that we can focus on small, independent, local agencies to attract Surreybased candidates into temporary positions, (as well as continuing to use the
larger more competitive agencies), which should see a positive impact in the
long term, on the permanent candidate market.
Connect2Surrey was established on 1 February 2022 as a replacement for
our previous third-party supplier of temporary resource, Adecco Plc, when the
contract terminated after five years, as per the procured contract terms.
The purpose of Connect2Surrey is to bring the sourcing and resourcing of
temporary positions within the council in house, with the assistance of back
office systems, expertise and staff from Commercial Services Kent Ltd, in a
50/50 partnership agreement. The aim is to generate income from our
continuing need for temporary resource, source candidates from a wider and
more local pool of agencies, academic institutions, faith sectors and charitable
organisations and reduce the reliance on agency staff by seeking to turn
temporary contracts into permanent ones for certain roles.
The progress of the Joint Venture will be monitored by the Shareholders’
Investment Panel and the Strategic Investment Board, as agreed by Cabinet
in July 2021.

Committee Focus Areas
11. The key areas of focus for Committee will be the improvement of the KPI’s
within the areas of employees from different ethnic minority backgrounds,
disabilities and employees aged under 30. These are directly linked to the
resourcing challenges that the organisation faces.
12. Voluntary turnover within the organisation is increasing, which is of concern,
although the level is still below the national average. The focus will be on how
we can improve our support of the workforce through a whole package of
benefits, both financial and non-financial, including wellbeing, financial
wellbeing support, career development opportunities and flexible working.
13. The particular challenge of social worker and social care worker attraction and
retention, within the budget envelope will continue to be an area our resourcing
teams will focus on.
14. A decision on a proposed pay deal will be sought by PPDC in quarter one of
2022/23 following negotiations with the trades unions.

Recommendations:

Page 69

15. It is recommended that Committee notes the contents of this report and
provides feedback to any of the sections above.
16. More detailed plans can be provided for different elements of the People &
Change workstreams, where members require them.
Next steps:
17. An update will be given to Resources & Performance Select Committee in 6
months’ time, whilst the Committee will continue to receive commentary on a
monthly basis through the regular KPI reporting for Resources.

Report contact
Paula Leach, Interim Director of People & Change
Bella Smith, Head of Insights, Programmes & Governance
Contact details
paula.leach@surrreycc.gov.uk
arabella.smith@surreycc.gov.uk

Page 70

Item 11
RESOURCES AND PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE

Thursday 14 April 2022

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (FWP) AND
RECOMMENDATION TRACKER (RT)
Purpose of report: To review and agree the Forward Work Programme (FWP). To
track recommendations and requests made by the Select Committee.
Introduction:
1. The Forward Work Programme (FWP) and Recommendation Tracker (RT)
update is a standing item on the agenda of the Select Committee.
2. The FWP covers the expected activity in 2021/22 (Annex A).
3. The RT tracks recommendations made by the Committee (Annex B).
4. The FWP includes regular items, task and reference groups updates and the
additional items the Select Committee would like to engage with in coming
months. This approach should enable the Select Committee to consider planning
and resourcing for its scrutiny and overview work across the year whilst retaining
enough flexibility to consider essential additional items as needed from time to
time. There should be no more than two task groups taking place concurrently.
Recommendations:
5. The Select Committee is recommended:
a) To review and agree the Forward Work Programme (Annex A);
b) To make any appropriate suggestions for possible amendments including
programming of in-depth session and other agenda items; and
c) To monitor the update provided in Recommendation Tracker (Annex B).
Next Steps:
The Select Committee reviews its Forward Work Programme and Recommendation
Tracker at each of its meetings.
Kunwar Khan
Scrutiny Officer | Democratic Services | Law and Governance
Surrey County Council | Kunwar.Khan@surreycc.gov.uk

Page 71

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex A

Resources and Performance Select Committee
Forward Work Programme 2021 – 2022
Resources and Performance Select Committee | Chairman: Cllr Nick Darby | Scrutiny Officer: Kunwar Khan
Democratic Services Assistant: Laila Laird
Date of
Meeting

Page 73

Wednesday
13 July 2022

Type of Scrutiny
Scrutiny

Scrutiny

Issue for
Scrutiny
Agile Office
Estate Strategy
Update Report
(Options for
North West
Surrey)
Equality,
Diversity and
Inclusion (EDI)
Review

Purpose

Outcome

For the Select Committee to
review a service update and
discuss the options for
north-west Surrey, ahead
of a report being presented
to Cabinet in September
2022.

For the Select Committee to
have the opportunity to
provide feedback and input.

For the Select Committee to
review the work undertaken
since previous scrutiny of
the draft plan by the Select
Committee in January 2021,
and then the Cabinet
decision to approve the
plan, made in February
2021.

To receive an update and
monitor progress since this
was last reported to the
committee.

Relevant
Organisational
Priority
Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit
Empowering
communities
Tackling health
inequality
Empowering
communities

Cabinet
Member/Lead
Officer
Natalie Bramhall,
Cabinet Member
for Property and
Waste
Simon Crowther,
Director of Land
and Property
Tim Oliver, Leader
of the Council
Michael Coughlin,
Executive Director,
Partnerships,
Prosperity &
Growth

Annex A
Scrutiny

Customer
Services Update
(NOT ON
THURSDAY)

Friday
7 October
2022

Scrutiny

Page 74

Scrutiny

Digital Exclusion
Report

Commercial
Investment
Portfolio

To receive an update report
following the Customer
Experience Task Group’s
recommendations to
receive such an update
report, plus any relevant
new information.

To seek reassurance.

To receive a report about
digital exclusion as
discussed on 17 September
2021 Select Committee
meeting.

To enable the Select
Committee to monitor and
seek reassurance that all
residents feel supported by
the Council. Nobody,
particularly elderly and
vulnerable are not left
behind due to emphasis on
digital/technology and the
use of chatbots.

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit

Oversight and exercise
critical friend function, to
ensure transparency and
good value for money within
the investment portfolio.

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit

To receive information on
the Commercial Property
Investment Portfolio, as
requested by the Chairman,
including information on
external professional advice
received by the Council with
regards to acquisition of
commercial properties.

Empowering
communities

Mark Nuti, Cabinet
Member for
Communities
Marie Snelling,
Executive Director
of Customer and
Communities

Empowering
communities

Mark Nuti, Cabinet
Member for
Communities;
Marie Snelling,
Executive Director
of Customer and
Communities

Natalie Bramhall,
Cabinet Member
for Property and
Waste
Simon Crowther,
Director of Land
and Property

Annex A
Pre-decision
scrutiny

Strategic Vision
for Digital
Infrastructure

For the service to present
the development of a
strategic vision for digital
infrastructure, including any
other relevant updates and
possibly information on the
outcome of the Government
consultation.

For the Select Committee to
have the opportunity to
provide feedback and input.

Empowering
communities

Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member
for Finance and
Resources
Amanda Richards,
Network and Asset
Management
Group Manager
Michael Coughlin,
Executive Director,
Partnerships,
Prosperity &
Growth

Page 75

Friday
9 December
2022

Scrutiny

Data Insights
Transformation
Programme

To receive an update about To assure the Select
Empowering
Data Insights
Committee of informed
communities
Transformation Programme. decision-making; assurance
that there is a robust
business intelligence
function in place that is
underpinned with up to date
and relevant information.

Rhiannon Mort,
Head of Economic
Infrastructure
Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member
for Finance and
Resources
Rachel Crossley,
Joint Executive
Director for Public
Service Reform
Angela Lawrence,
Head of Data
Gary Strudwick,
Head of Business
Intelligence

Annex A
Scrutiny

2023/24 Draft
Budget report

For the Select Committee to
scrutinise the draft 2022/23
budget, Medium-Term
Financial Strategy and other
relevant information, before
it is finalised in January
2022.

To ensure the 2023/24
budget deliver good value.

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit

Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member
for Finance and
Resources
Leigh Whitehouse,
Deputy Chief
Executive and
Executive Director
for Resources
Anna
D’Alessandro,
Director, Corporate
Finance and
Commercial

Page 76

Mark Hak-Sanders,
Strategic Finance
Business Partner
Nicola O’Connor,
Strategic Finance
Business Partner
Rachel Wigley,
Director - Finance,
Insights and
Performance

Annex A
TBC

TBC

Policy
Development and
Review

Scrutiny

Page 77
TBC

Scrutiny

Agile Office
Estate Strategy
Review

Procurement
Modernisation
Project

IT & Digital
Update

To enable the Select
Committee to review the
Strategy in accordance with
the following
recommendation of the
County Hall Move and Agile
Programme Task Group:
“The Resources and
Performance Select
Committee receive the
Council’s Office Strategy on
an annual basis, ensuring in
particular that the carbon
neutral targets are
achieved.”

To provide oversight and
monitoring.

On a suggestion from the
Cabinet Member for
Finance and Resources, to
bring the Procurement
Modernisation Project to the
Select Committee, and in
order to inform Members on
a number of major
procurement contracts
currently ongoing.

For the Select Committee to
gain greater understanding
and assurance on
procurement modernisation.

To review the Information
Technology and Digital
(IT&D) Service and any
updates, following on from a
previous overview of the
service provided at the 18
March 2021 Select
Committee meeting.

For the Select Committee to
receive greater
understanding and
assurance on the work of
the IT&D Service.

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit
Empowering
communities

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit
Empowering
communities

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit
Empowering
communities

Natalie Bramhall,
Cabinet Member
for Property and
Waste
Simon Crowther,
Director of Land
and Property

Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member
for Finance and
Resources
Darron Cox
Director Procurement

Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member
for Finance and
Resources
Matt Scott, Chief
Information Officer

Annex A

Task and Finish Groups; Member Reference Groups
Timescale

Type of Scrutiny

Issue for
Scrutiny

Purpose

Outcome

Page 78

On-going,
yearly budget
monitoring

Budget scrutiny

Budget Task
Group

To enable in-depth scrutiny
of the 2022/23 budget,
cutting across the remits of
all four Select Committees.

To ensure that the 2022/23
budget offers good value for
money in all the Council’s
service areas, enabling the
best outcomes for
residents.

September
2021 to 2022

Oversight and
assurance

Accommodation
with Care and
Support
(Informal Group
led by the
Chairman and
supported by Vice
Chairs)

To ensure value for money
and greater understanding
about the processes of the
Accommodation with Care
and Support programme,
focusing on the Property
aspects.

To provide assurance for
Members on the progress,
value for money and
outcome for residents of the
Accommodation with Care
and Support programme.

(Ongoing until
a further notice
by the
Chairman)

Relevant
Organisational
Priority
Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit

Membership

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit

Membership:
 Nick Darby
 Will Forster

Membership:
 Nick Darby
(Chairman)
 Ayesha Azad
 Liz Bowes
 Will Forster
 John O’Reilly
 Lance Spencer
 Buddhi
Weerasinghe
 Robert Evans

Tackling health
inequality

To be received in writing and informal briefing sessions
Wednesday
9 March 2022

Equality,
Diversity and
Inclusion (ED&I)

For the Select
Committee to
receive an update
on the
implementation
and progress of

For the Select Committee to review the progress and offer
any input and feedback.

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit

Michael Coughlin,
Executive Director,
Partnerships,
Prosperity &
Growth

Annex A
the Council’s
ED&I plan.
TBC 2023

Treasury
Management
Strategy

For the Select
Committee to
receive
information on the
Treasury
Management
Strategy (TMS)
as part of the
2022/23 budget
process.

Empowering
communities
For the Select Committee to offer any input or
recommendations on the TMS.

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit

Mark Hak-Sanders,
Strategic Finance
Business Partner

Standing Items


Page 79



Forward Work Programme (FWP) and Recommendations Tracker: Review of the Select Committee’s forward work programme, and monitoring of
the Select Committee recommendations and actions.
Notes of Performance Monitoring Session: A record of the most recent informal Performance Monitoring session (conducted every 2-4 months). >

This page is intentionally left blank

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY

No Progress Reported

Action In Progress

Action Completed

RECOMMENDATIONS
Date
18
Oct
2019

Page 81

18
Dec
2021

Item

Recommendation

Quarterly Performance
Report (Q1 2019/20)

RPSC1/19: The Select Committee is to
receive on an annual basis information
on how Surrey County Council’s
performance compares with other
councils.

Broadband in Surrey
[Item 8]

RPSC1/21: The Select Committee
recommends that it receives the Digital
Infrastructure Strategy, before the
strategy is finalised, for scrutiny at a
future meeting.

Responsible
Member/ Officer
Rachel Wigley,
Director – Finance,
Insights &
Performance

Deadline

Progress
check
29 March
2022

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented
As of September 2021, a
benchmarking report is being
prepared and will be shared with the
Select Committee once it has been
signed off.

Michael Coughlin,
Director of
Economic Growth
and Prosperity

Complete

29 March
2022

Since Select Committee in December
when this action was raised, the
status of the proposed strategy has
been evolving.

Dawn Redpath
Director for
Economy & Growth

As part of the preparations for the
phase 2b (Lot 22) contract, the
Government is carrying out a Public
Review to help identify premises in
Surrey that may be suitable for future
public funding for gigabit-capable
broadband. The Government is
seeking information and supporting
evidence from suppliers in relation to
the presence of gigabit-capable
(broadband speeds of 1000Mbps or
more) infrastructure within the project

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Page 82

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented
area. We are actively encouraging
suppliers who have existing network
coverage or plans to build gigabit
infrastructure within the next three
years in Surrey to respond to the
review.
This Public Review consultation is
open from 5pm on 29 March 2022
and closes at 5pm on 29 April 2022.
Due to this, as well as other
developments, we have suspended
the development of a full digital
infrastructure strategy and instead
are preparing a ‘strategic vision’ for
digital infrastructure. We would
envisage this draft vision being
brought to Select Committee at their
July meeting with any other relevant
updates, possibly also information on
the outcome of the Government
consultation.

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Page 83
17
Sep
2021

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented
A briefing note providing an update
on Digital Infrastructure was
previously sent to all Members on 17
August 2021, which can be found
here:
Digital Infrastructure
Briefing Note 130821.docx

Cabinet Member
Priorities Update – Tim
Oliver
[Item 4]

RPSC3/21: Cabinet is to consider how
Surrey County Council engages with
organisations that undertake political
lobbying and/or are involved in matters
that some might consider controversial.
RPSC4/21: Surrey County Council
should ensure that any impact on other
protected characteristic groups are
identified and carefully taken into
consideration before finalising the
Trans at Work policy.

Tim Oliver, Leader
of the Council

Complete

29 March
2022

Recommendations were conveyed to
the Service and a special briefing
session was arranged.

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation

Action In Progress

Action Completed

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Deadline

Progress
check

Mark Nuti, Cabinet
Member for
Communities

Complete

29 March
2022

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented

RPSC5/21: The Trans at Work policy is
to be presented to the Select
Committee prior to being finalised.

Page 84

RPSC6/21: More focus is to be given to
the range of topics covered in internal
communications in the daily media
email update to Members. In particular
all references articles in the daily media
briefing to be made available to all
Members.
RPSC7/21: A report on digital exclusion
is to be provided to this Select
Committee at a future meeting.

17
Sep
2021

Cabinet Member
Priorities Update – Mark
Nuti
[Item 7]

RPSC11/21: Consideration be given to
the customer services team providing
relevant information and data, based on
the calls received by them, to the
respective elected representatives
about their wards/ divisions.
RPSC12/21: Careful consideration be
given to ensuring that the roll-out of

Marie Snelling,
Executive Director
of Customer and
Communities

Cabinet Member and Executive
Director have been informed.

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented

chatbots does not result in a negative
impact on digitally excluded and elderly
residents.

Page 85

17
Dec
2021

RPSC13/21: An opportunity to visit the
customer services contact centre be
offered to Members by the service at an
appropriate time.
2022/23 Draft Budget
Report and
Medium-Term
Financial Strategy
(MTFS) to 2026/27
[Item 5]

RPSC15/21: As a matter of agreed
budget setting process every year,
following the details of the Local
Government Finance Settlement in
usually mid-December, the Section 151
Officer provide a written briefing note to
all Members with details of any impact
on the Surrey County Council finances,
service delivery and effect on its
residents.
RPSC16/21: The Cabinet is requested
to ensure that a comprehensive, truly
representative and early budget
consultation with residents and key
stakeholders should form an integral

The Executive Director has offered
visits to Members.

Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member for
Finance and
Resources
Leigh Whitehouse,
Deputy Chief
Executive &
Executive Director
of Resources

Complete

29 March
2022

Cabinet has responded to the
recommendations at its meeting 25
January 2022.

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation

Page 86

part of the Council’s budget setting
process each year with findings
communicated to all Members and
made available to Select Committees
with draft budget papers. The initial
budget consultation process should
conclude first before a draft budget is
presented to the Council’s Select
Committees. The deadline for the
current call for evidence be extended
from 28 December 2021 to allow
residents and stakeholders more time
to comment and engage after the
festive and the New Year period.
1. From the Council’s borrowing cost
point of view, the Cabinet should
carefully examine to ensure that the
effect of borrowing result in a real
return, particularly any commercial
borrowing ought to cover return on
its investment.
2. The Cabinet to ensure that an
assessment is undertaken of all

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation
Surrey's Borough and District
Council's Local Council Tax Support
to ensure any increase in Surrey
County Council’s share of Council
Tax is affordable to all residents.

Page 87

3. To further support collaborative
working, to avoid any silos and to
ensure proper oversight and
effective budget scrutiny next year,
the Cabinet is requested to ensure
that the Resources and
Performance Select Committee and
its Budget Task Group (with all
Select Committee representation)
will be provided with:
a. Regular in-year up-to-date
finance monitoring updates
throughout the year –
particularly when there are
significant and material changes
– to be assured that
assumptions made and
expectations derived from the

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation
budget 2022-23 and MTFS
2026-27 (where relevant) will be
met in practice;

Page 88

b. Early communication and
understanding of 2023/24 draft
budget with high-level
assessment of effect on
residents;
c. Meaningful details about the
budget efficiencies with
overarching Budget Impact
Assessments (including any
impact on service delivery,
residents, corporate and
organisational priorities,
Equality, Diversity & Inclusion
and staffing etc.) be provided to
Select Committees and Budget
Task Group where appropriate
before the draft budget is
formally presented to all Select
Committees. This should
happen earlier than November

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation

Action In Progress

Action Completed

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Deadline

Progress
check

Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member for
Finance &
Resources

Complete

29 March
2022

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented

to ensure Members have
sufficient time to understand,
make further enquires and add
real value to the scrutiny
process;

Page 89
20
Jan
2022

d. Commentary and comparison of
corporate costs of the Council
with similar authorities.
Commercial Investment
Property
[Item 10]

The Resources and Performance
Select Committee:
RPSC1/22: Asks the Service/Cabinet
Member to share with the Select
Committee yearly revaluation reports
for Surrey and Halsey Garton
properties annually, as soon as
available; and
RPSC2/22: Requests the Cabinet
Member to consider establishing a
stand-alone Council wide
strategic Member Asset Advisory Panel
to assist decision

Natalie Bramhall,
Cabinet Member for
Property & Waste
Anna D’Alessandro,
Director –
Corporate, Finance
& Commercial

RPSC1/22 Agreed that valuations
would be shared as soon as
available, which may also coincide
with the half yearly update.

RPSC2/22 Confirmed that a separate
Panel isn’t needed, and a short paper
will be written to summarise the
Member-led (Asset Strategy Board)
and Officer led Boards that are to be

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation
making and oversight of the strategy in
respect of the property portfolio.

Page 90

20
Jan
2022

Agile Office Estate
Strategy
[Item 7]

RPSC3/22: The Deputy Chief
Executive and Director for Resources to
discuss options for consideration with
the Resources and Performance Select
Committee prior to Cabinet.

RPSC4/22: Asks Cabinet Member to
ensure that an adequate regular repairs
programme with corresponding annual
maintenance budget is in place and
reflected in the Directorate/
Council’s budget for 2022/23 and
beyond.

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer
Simon Crowther,
Director – Land &
Property
Natalie Bramhall,
Cabinet Member for
Property & Waste
Leigh Whitehouse,
Deputy Chief
Executive &
Executive Director
for Resources
Simon Crowther,
Director – Land &
Property

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented
put in place that will review assets
with aim of giving greater
transparency and improved decision
making.

29 March
2022

RPSC3/22: The directorate suggests
that an update report is scheduled for
the Resources and Performance
Select Committee meeting in July
2022 to present and discuss the
options for north-west Surrey, ahead
of a report being presented to
Cabinet in September 2022.
RPSC4/22: The Land and Property
(L&P) Facilities Department manages
the compliance planned and reactive
maintenance works for the Council’s
estate. Maintenance programmes are
continuous. The programmes are
monitored through Planon, L&P’s
Resource and Business Management
System.

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation

Page 91

RPSC5/22: Requests Cabinet Member
to share the result of Surrey’s public
sector office estate portfolio
survey/audit with the Select Committee.

RPSC6/22: Asks Cabinet Member: to
consider how best to work jointly with
boroughs, districts and other partners in
terms of the effective utilisation of the
Council’s office estate; ensure that all

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented
The Forward Maintenance Register
(FMR) is a five-year plan which is
developed and budgeted based on
regular condition surveys. The plan is
reviewed and prioritised annually.
RPSC5/22: A “Forward
Maintenance Register Programme
FY2022-23_Apr2022” was sent to
Members showing a comprehensive
list of works to be undertaken
FY2022/23. It is to be expected that
there may be movement on the
scheduled works due to Service
restrictions (i.e. timing, to ensure
compatible with continued service
delivery).
RPSC6/22: Council officers are
working with District and Borough
(D&B) Councils on several levels,
in the first instance to ensure D&B
Chief Executives understand the

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation
Surrey County Council office estate
buildings are accessible to residents;
and support net zero and climate
change ambitions.

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Page 92

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented
direction of travel the Council is taking
and why. D&B’s are also being
consulted on their long-term plans for
office space and where appropriate,
opportunities which could have mutual
benefits are being explored.
Improving and enhancing the userexperience for residents, and staff,
when visiting Council offices is a key
driver and focus of the Council’s Agile
Organisation Programme (AOP), now
in Phase 3 with a three-year plan. The
AOP team (comprising of officers from
Human Resources, Equality, Diversity &
Inclusion (EDI), IT&D, Greener
Futures and Land & Property) has
begun extensive engagement
exercises with Service colleagues to
understand their space requirements
to best serve and meet the needs of
residents.
Actions already underway include a
revised design for Woodhatch Place
for the Children’s Service, resulting in

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Page 93

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented
a resident-centric entrance (via a
private entrance to the side of the
building, for a more “family-friendly”
environment for children and their
carers) as well as private meeting
rooms and spaces. Engagement with
Services and needs-analysis is
on-going, as is upgrading access for
those with mobility issues. For
example, Blue Badge parking spaces
have been shifted closer to the main
entrance at Woodhatch Place,
installation of automated doors,
improvements to washroom areas.
To ensure compliancy with Disability
Discrimination Act (DDA) guidelines,
the Centre for Accessible
Environments (CAE) carried out an
independent audit of the main offices
(September 2021) to ensure they are
fully accessible. The CAE has also
advised where additional
improvements can be made
(where the office

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented
structure allows), and again, liaison
continues with EDI colleagues to
implement recommendations.

Page 94

Net-Zero and climate change
ambitions are supported through the
Council’s Greener Futures programme.
Current works include solar panels
being installed at multiple sites
(including Woodhatch Place). The
Greener Futures programme will
continue to target investment in
energy efficiency and energy
generation across the Council’s office
estate.

RPSC7/22: Briefing to be provided to
the Select Committee once a further
paper to Cabinet has been prepared
but before a decision is taken.

RPSC7/22: As agreed by Cabinet in
December 2021, a detailed review of
the options of how the Council can
best meet Service need in the
north-west quadrant of Surrey has
commenced. A report will be
presented to Cabinet in September
2022.

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented

Page 95

An initial review and update of the
demand analysis has been completed
and the Business Case is in progress.
The strategic objectives will be shared
with senior stakeholders at the earliest
opportunity.
The outline next steps are:
Supply analysis: review of existing
assets and potential new ones – April
2022
Review of any partner opportunities
for the medium and long-term – April
2022
Financial and non-financial evaluation
of different scenarios – May 2022
Refining of options and
recommendation formed – June 2022
Update to Resources and

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented
Performance
Select Committee – July 2022 (TBC)
Report presented to Cabinet –
September 2022

Page 96

20
Jan
2022

Digital Business and
Insights (DB&I)
Programme Update
[Item 5]

RPSC8/22: The Select Committee
asks Cabinet Member to ensure that
robust governance and project
management arrangements – with
proactive controls, testing and regular
monitoring – be put in place in order to
ensure lessons are learnt by Surrey
County Council from this delay in the
Digital Business and Insights project
that has resulted in additional cost to
the Council.
RPSC9/22: The Select Committee
requests that the Cabinet Member
inform the Select Committee what the
above arrangement will look like in
practice and ensure this is undertaken
by April 2022 in time for the new
financial year and beyond. This should

Leigh Whitehouse,
Deputy Chief
Executive &
Executive Director
of Resources

Complete

29 March
2022

To strengthen the proactive controls
and monitoring, Surrey County
Council (SCC) has already
developed a Project & Programme
Methodology (PPM) that reflects
industry best practice and includes a
gateway approach that drives regular
reviews within a programme
including regular checks against
benefits delivery. This framework has
been developed in-conjunction with
all services across the Council and a
sharepoint site (intranet) is now live
containing all the relevant information
and documentation. An overview of
this approach was shared with the
Resources Performance Select
Committee Members in January
2022 (see attached slides).

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation
include any feedback and comments
from the internal audit and the Council’s
Audit and Governance Committee.

Page 97

RPSC10/22: The Select Committee
requests Cabinet Member to offer to
share any learning on this issue with
districts and boroughs in Surrey who
are or might be going through a similar
digital journey in terms of project
management.

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented
The DB&I project will undertake a
full, lessons learnt review once
completed later this year. Had the
PPM approach been in place when
DB&I was initiated the approach
would have been utilised but there is
no evidence that the PPM approach
was lacking within the DB&I
programme. Any lessons learned will
be factored into the PPM approach.
The Transformation Support Unit
(TSU) offers to brief the Cabinet
Member & Resources & Performance
Committee Members on the PPM
approach if that would be helpful.
In Spring/Summer of 2022, the
service will deliver a council wide
training programme to Senior
Responsible Officers, Programme
Managers and Project Managers on
this best practice PPM approach.

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Recommendation

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

In addition, a new benefits
management framework is in place
with training for project managers
commencing in March 2022.

Page 98
20
Jan
2022

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented
As detailed above

The SCC developed PPM approach
and framework will be shared
through the Surrey Treasurers Group
and any interested organisation will
be invited for further discussion.
Capital Investment and
Treasury Management
Strategy 2022/23
[Item 6]

RPSC11/22: The Strategic Finance
Business to arrange for training to be
made available for Committee
Members.

RPSC12/22: The Strategic Finance
Business Partner to organise a property
portfolio Member Seminar going
forward.

Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member for
Finance &
Resources
Anna D’Alessandro,
Finance Director –
Corporate &
Commercial

Complete

29 March
2022

RPSC11/22: The service agreed to
hold a Treasury Management training
session for the Committee at an
appropriate time to coincide with the
approval of the Treasury
Management Strategy.
RPSC12/22: The Chairman and
service agreed on 11 March 2022 this
was not required at this stage.

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY

No Progress Reported

Action In Progress

Action Completed

ACTIONS
Date

Page 99

18
Dec
2021

Item
Broadband in Surrey
[Item 8]

Action
RPSC2/21: The Engagement Manager
to work in partnership with the
communications team to provide
material that Members can use on their
social media, newsletters or email
signatures to promote the broadband
programme and community fibre
partnerships.

Responsible
Member/ Officer
Michael Coughlin,
Director of
Economic Growth
and Prosperity
Dawn Redpath
Director for
Economy & Growth

Deadline
Complete

Progress
check
29 March
2022

Action response.
accepted/ implemented
Response as of July 2021: “In April
2021, the Government launched a
new Gigabit Broadband Voucher
Scheme. Whilst the value (£1,500
per residential premises and £3,500
per business premises) of the
vouchers remained the same as the
previous scheme, the Government
revised the number of postcodes that
are eligible for this scheme, basing
its decision on Ofcom’s Area 3
designation.
We planned to launch a new
campaign in June to target eligible
postcodes but before this could
happen, Openreach made several
major announcements about their
future rollout plans. These included
many exchanges that covered the
same Area 3 postcodes that were

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Item

No Progress Reported

Action

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Action response.
accepted/ implemented
eligible for Government voucher
funding.

Page 100

Whilst residents have still continued
to investigate the scheme, we have
held off or the moment from doing
any significant communication
activities around it. It is believed that
by October there will be sufficient
clarity for Surrey County Council
(SCC) to undertake a campaign to
premises in eligible postcodes. At
this time, we will be providing
Members with publicity materials to
promote the Gigabit voucher
scheme.
In the meantime, SCC’s Digital
Infrastructure webpage
(Digital infrastructure coverage in Surrey
- Surrey County Council
(surreycc.gov.uk) ) is highlighted to
Members. This provides a summary
of current publicly announced plans

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

Page 101

17
Sep
2021

Item

Cabinet Member
Priorities Update – Tim
Oliver
[Item 4]

No Progress Reported

Action

RPSC8/21: Deputy Cabinet Member to
the Leader to provide more information
on how the Council trains and monitors
officers carrying out recruitment
interviews to ensure they have EDI
awareness and adhere to best practice.

Action In Progress

Action Completed

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Deadline

Progress
check

Action response.
accepted/ implemented
and schemes and it is updated on a
regular basis.” The action will be
followed up in October 2021.

Tim Oliver, Leader
of the Council

Complete

29 March
2022

Recommendations were conveyed to
the Service and a special briefing
session was arranged.

RPSC9/21: Democratic Services
officers to share councillor diversity
analysis conducted after the May 2021
election with the Select Committee.
RPSC10/21: Executive Director of
Resources to provide information on
how the Council is addressing resource
concerns and how it is taking this into
account for the future.

Response has been provided by the
Resources Directorate.

This page is intentionally left blank

